UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

FORM 8-K

CURRENT REPORT

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): May 30, 2024

KKR & CO. INC.

(Ex	act name of registrant as specified in its cha	arter)
Delaware	001-34820	88-1203639
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation)	(Commission File Number)	(IRS Employer Identification No.)
30 Hudson Yards New York, New York		10001
(Address of principal executive offic	es)	(Zip Code)
(Res	(212) 750-8300 gistrant's telephone number, including area	code)
	NOT APPLICABLE	
(Former	name or former address, if changed since l	ast report)
Check the appropriate box below if the Form the following provisions (see General Instruction A.2.		tisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of
☐ Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 to	under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)	
☐ Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 und	ler the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)	
☐ Pre-commencement communications pursuant	to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (1	7 CFR 240.14d-2(b))
☐ Pre-commencement communications pursuant	to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (1	7 CFR 240.13e-4(c))
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b	o) of the Act:	
Title of each class Common Stock	Trading symbol(s) KKR	Name of each exchange on which registered New York Stock Exchange
4.625% Subordinated Notes due 2061 of KKR Group Finance Co. IX LLC	KKRS	New York Stock Exchange
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an enchapter) or Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act		405 of the Securities Act of 1933 (§230.405 of this
☐ Emerging growth company		
☐ If an emerging growth company, indicate by check new or revised financial accounting standards provide		the extended transition period for complying with any Act.

Item 1.01 Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.

The information set forth in Item 2.03 is hereby incorporated by reference into this Item 1.01.

Item 2.03 Creation of a Direct Financial Obligation or an Obligation under an Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement of a Registrant.

On May 30, 2024, KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC (the "Issuer"), an indirect subsidiary of KKR & Co. Inc. (the "Corporation"), completed the offering of (i) ¥44,600,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its 1.559% Senior Notes due 2029 (the "2029 Notes"), (ii) ¥1,000,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its 1.762% Senior Notes due 2031 (the "2031 Notes"), (iii) ¥26,200,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its 2.083% Senior Notes due 2034 (the "2034 Notes"), (iv) ¥10,000,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its 2.719% Senior Notes due 2044 (the "2044 Notes") and (v) ¥9,600,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its 3.008% Senior Notes due 2054 (the "2054 Notes" and, together with the 2029 Notes, the 2031 Notes, the 2034 Notes and the 2044 Notes, the "Notes"). The Notes are guaranteed by the Corporation and KKR Group Partnership L.P., an indirect subsidiary of the Corporation (together with the Corporation, the "Guarantors"). The Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture (the "Base Indenture"), dated as of April 26, 2022, among the Issuer, KKR Group Co. Inc. (formerly known as KKR & Co. Inc.), KKR Group Partnership L.P. and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"), as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 31, 2022 (the "Second Supplemental Indenture"), among the Issuer, the Corporation and the Trustee, and the Fourth Supplemental Indenture"), among the Issuer, the Guarantors and the Trustee.

The 2029 Notes bear interest at a rate of 1.559% per annum and will mature on May 30, 2029 unless earlier redeemed. The 2031 Notes bear interest at a rate of 1.762% per annum and will mature on May 30, 2031 unless earlier redeemed. The 2034 Notes bear interest at a rate of 2.083% per annum and will mature on May 30, 2034 unless earlier redeemed. The 2044 Notes bear interest at a rate of 2.719% per annum and will mature on May 27, 2044 unless earlier redeemed. The 2054 Notes bear interest at a rate of 3.008% per annum and will mature on May 29, 2054 unless earlier redeemed. Interest on the Notes accrues from May 30, 2024 and is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 30 and November 30 of each year, commencing on November 30, 2024 and ending on the applicable maturity date. The Notes are unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer. The Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed (the "Guarantees"), jointly and severally, by each of the Guarantors. The Guarantees are unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Guarantors.

The Indenture includes covenants, including limitations on the Issuer's and the Guarantors' ability to, subject to exceptions, incur indebtedness secured by liens on voting stock or profit participating equity interests of their subsidiaries or merge, consolidate or sell, transfer or convey all or substantially all of their assets. The Indenture also provides for events of default and further provides that the Trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes may declare the Notes immediately due and payable upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any event of default after expiration of any applicable grace period. In the case of specified events of bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or reorganization, the principal amount of the Notes and any accrued and unpaid interest on the Notes automatically become due and payable. The Issuer may redeem some or all of the 2031 Notes, the 2034 Notes, the 2044 Notes and the 2054 Notes after the applicable par call date for such series at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed, together with interest accrued and unpaid to, but excluding, the date fixed for redemption, additionally, the Issuer may redeem the Notes at its option, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed, together with interest accrued and unpaid to, but excluding, the date fixed for redemption, at any time, in the event of certain changes affecting taxation as provided in the Indenture. If a change of control repurchase event occurs, the Notes are subject to repurchase by the Issuer at a repurchase price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes repurchased plus any accrued and unpaid interest on the Notes repurchased to, but not including, the date of repurchase.

The preceding is a summary of the terms of the Indenture and the forms of the Notes, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Base Indenture filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 26, 2022, the Second Supplemental Indenture filed as Exhibit 4.20 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 5, 2022, the Fourth Supplemental Indenture filed as Exhibit 4.1 to this report and the forms of the Notes filed as Exhibits 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, 4.5 and 4.6 to this report and incorporated herein by reference as though they were fully set forth herein.

Item 7.01 Regulation FD Disclosure.

On May 22, 2024, the Issuer priced the offering of the Notes. The Corporation intends to use the net proceeds from the sale of the Notes for general corporate purposes.

The Notes were offered pursuant to Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"). The Notes have not been registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements.

A copy of the press release announcing the pricing of the Notes is furnished as Exhibit 99.1 to this Current Report on Form 8-K.

The information in this Item 7.01 (including the exhibit furnished hereunder) shall not be deemed to be "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), nor shall it be deemed to be incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such a filing.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(d) Exhibits

Exhibit No.	Description		
Exhibit 4.1	Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 30, 2024, among KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC, KKR & Co. Inc., KKR Group Partnership L.P. and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee.		
Exhibit 4.2	Form of 1.559% Senior Note due 2029 (included in Exhibit 4.1 hereto).		
Exhibit 4.3	Form of 1.762% Senior Note due 2031 (included in Exhibit 4.1 hereto).		
Exhibit 4.4	Form of 2.083% Senior Note due 2034 (included in Exhibit 4.1 hereto).		
Exhibit 4.5	Form of 2.719% Senior Note due 2044 (included in Exhibit 4.1 hereto).		
Exhibit 4.6	Form of 3.008% Senior Note due 2054 (included in Exhibit 4.1 hereto).		
Exhibit 99.1	Press Release, dated May 22, 2024, issued by KKR & Co. Inc. (This exhibit is furnished and not filed).		
Exhibit 104	Cover Page Interactive Data File, formatted in Inline XBRL.		

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

KKR & CO. INC.

Date: May 30, 2024 By: /s/ Christopher Lee

Name: Christopher Lee
Title: Secretary

FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE

Dated as of May 30, 2024

Supplementing that Certain

INDENTURE

Dated as of April 26, 2022

Among

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC,

THE GUARANTOR PARTIES HERETO

and

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A.,

as Trustee

1.559% Senior Notes due 2029

1.762% Senior Notes due 2031

2.083% Senior Notes due 2034

2.719% Senior Notes due 2044

3.008% Senior Notes due 2054

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
	ARTICLE 1 ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES	
Section 1.01.	Issuance of Notes; Principal Amount; Maturity; Title	2
Section 1.02.	Interest	5
Section 1.03.	Payment	6
Section 1.04.	Relationship with Base Indenture	7
Section 1.05.	Amendments to the Indenture	7
	ARTICLE 2 Definitions and Other Provisions of General Application	
Section 2.01.	Definitions	7
	A DETICAL E. A	
	ARTICLE 3 Security Forms	
	SECONI I I OKNO	
Section 3.01.	Form Generally	13
Section 3.02.	Form of Note	13
Section 3.03.	Transfer and Exchange of Global Securities	87
	ARTICLE 4 Remedies	
Section 4.01.	Events of Default	87
Section 4.02.	Waiver of Past Defaults	88
	ARTICLE 5 REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES	
Section 5.01.	Optional Redemption	88
Section 5.02.	Tax Redemption	89
	ARTICLE 6 PARTICULAR COVENANTS	
Section 6.01.	Liens	91
Section 6.02.	Obligation to Offer to Repurchase Upon a Change of Control Repurchase Event	91
Section 6.03.	Financial Reports	93
Section 6.04.	Additional Amounts	93

ARTICLE 7 [RESERVED]

ARTICLE 8 SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES

Section 8.01.	Supplemental Indentures without Consent of Holders of Notes	96
Section 8.02.	Supplemental Indentures with Consent of Holders of Notes	96
	ARTICLE 9 Defeasance	
Section 9.01.	Covenant Defeasance	98
	ARTICLE 10 Miscellaneous	
Section 10.01.	Execution as Supplemental Indenture	98
Section 10.02.	Not Responsible for Recitals or Issuance of Notes	99
Section 10.03.	Separability Clause	99
Section 10.04.	Successors and Assigns	99
Section 10.05.	Execution and Counterparts	99
Section 10.06.	Governing Law	99
Section 10.07.	FATCA	99
	ii	

This Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 30, 2024 (this "Fourth Supplemental Indenture"), among KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC, a limited liability company duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, having its principal office at 30 Hudson Yards, New York, New York 10001 (the "Company"), the Guarantors party hereto (the "Guarantors") and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee under the Base Indenture (as hereinafter defined) and hereunder (the "Trustee"), supplements that certain Indenture, dated as of April 26, 2022, among the Company, KKR Group Co. Inc. (formerly known as KKR & Co. Inc.), KKR Group Partnership L.P. and the Trustee (the "Base Indenture"), as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 31, 2022 (the "Second Supplemental Indenture") (subject to Section 1.04 hereof, the Base Indenture, together with the Second Supplemental Indenture and this Fourth Supplemental Indenture, the "Indenture").

RECITALS OF THE COMPANY

The Company and the Guarantors have heretofore executed and delivered to the Trustee the Base Indenture providing for the issuance from time to time of one or more series of the Company's senior unsecured debt securities (herein and in the Base Indenture called the "Securities"), the forms and terms of which are to be determined as set forth in Sections 2.01 and 3.01 of the Base Indenture, and the Guarantees thereof by the Guarantors;

Section 9.01 of the Base Indenture provides, among other things, that the Company, the Guarantors and the Trustee may enter into indentures supplemental to the Base Indenture for, among other things, the purposes of (a) establishing the form or terms of Securities of any series as permitted by Sections 2.01 and 3.01 of the Base Indenture and (b) adding to or changing any of the provisions to the Base Indenture in certain circumstances; and

The Company desires to create five series of Securities designated as its "1.559% Senior Notes due 2029" (the "2029 Notes"), "1.762% Senior Notes due 2031" (the "2031 Notes"), "2.083% Senior Notes due 2034" (the "2034 Notes"), "2.719% Senior Notes due 2044" (the "2044 Notes") and "3.008% Senior Notes due 2054" (the "2054 Notes") pursuant to the terms of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture.

The Company has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture and the Notes to be issued from time to time, as provided for in the Indenture.

Each Guarantor has duly authorized its Guarantee of the Notes and to provide therefor each Guarantor has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture.

All things necessary have been done to make this Fourth Supplemental Indenture a valid and legally binding agreement of the Company, in accordance with its terms and to make the Notes, when executed by the Company and authenticated and delivered by

the Trustee under the Indenture and duly issued by the Company, the valid and legally binding obligations of the Company.

All things necessary have been done to make the Guarantees, upon execution and delivery of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture, the valid and legally binding obligations of each Guarantor and to make this Fourth Supplemental Indenture a valid and legally binding agreement of each Guarantor, in accordance with its terms.

ARTICLE 1 ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES

- Section 1.01. *Issuance of Notes; Principal Amount; Maturity; Title.* (a) On May 30, 2024, the Company shall issue and deliver to the Trustee, and the Trustee shall authenticate, the Initial 2029 Notes, the Initial 2031 Notes, the Initial 2034 Notes, the Initial 2044 Notes and the Initial 2054 Notes substantially in the form set forth in Section 3.02 below, in each case with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions and other variations as are required or permitted by the Base Indenture and this Fourth Supplemental Indenture, and with such letters, numbers, or other marks of identification and such legends or endorsements placed thereon as may be required to comply with applicable tax laws or the rules of any securities exchange or Depositary therefor or as may, consistently herewith, be determined by the Officer executing such Notes, as evidenced by the execution of such Notes.
- (b) Pursuant to the terms hereof and Sections 2.01 and 3.01 of the Base Indenture, the Company hereby creates a series of Securities designated as the "1.559% Senior Notes due 2029," "1.762% Senior Notes due 2031," "2.083% Senior Notes due 2034," "2.719% Senior Notes due 2044" and "3.008% Senior Notes due 2054" of the Company (as amended or supplemented from time to time, that are issued under the Indenture, including the Initial 2029 Notes, Initial 2031 Notes, Initial 2034 Notes, Initial 2044 Notes, Initial 2054 Notes and the Additional Notes (as defined below), if any, the "Notes"), which Notes shall be deemed "Securities" for all purposes under the Base Indenture.
- (c) The Initial 2029 Notes to be issued pursuant to the Indenture shall be issued and initially limited in aggregate principal amount to ¥44,600,000,000 and shall mature on the Stated Maturity, unless the 2029 Notes are redeemed prior to that date as described in Article 5. The aggregate principal amount of Initial 2029 Notes Outstanding at any time may not exceed ¥44,600,000,000, except for 2029 Notes issued, authenticated and delivered upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for, or in lieu of, other 2029 Notes of the series pursuant to Sections 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 9.06 or 11.07 of the Base Indenture and except for any 2029 Notes which, pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered.

may not exceed ¥1,000,000,000, except for 2031 Notes issued, authenticated and delivered upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for, or in lieu of, other 2031 Notes of the series pursuant to Sections 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 9.06 or 11.07 of the Base Indenture and except for any 2031 Notes which, pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered.

- (e) The Initial 2034 Notes to be issued pursuant to the Indenture shall be issued and initially limited in aggregate principal amount to \$\frac{\text{\congruence}}{26,200,000,000}\$ and shall mature on the Stated Maturity, unless the 2034 Notes are redeemed prior to that date as described in Article 5. The aggregate principal amount of Initial 2034 Notes Outstanding at any time may not exceed \$\frac{\text{\congruence}}{26,200,000,000}\$, except for 2034 Notes issued, authenticated and delivered upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for, or in lieu of, other 2034 Notes of the series pursuant to Sections 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 9.06 or 11.07 of the Base Indenture and except for any 2034 Notes which, pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered.
- (f) The Initial 2044 Notes to be issued pursuant to the Indenture shall be issued and initially limited in aggregate principal amount to \$\frac{1}{2}10,000,000,000 and shall mature on the Stated Maturity, unless the 2044 Notes are redeemed prior to that date as described in Article 5. The aggregate principal amount of Initial 2044 Notes Outstanding at any time may not exceed \$\frac{1}{2}10,000,000,000, except for 2044 Notes issued, authenticated and delivered upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for, or in lieu of, other 2044 Notes of the series pursuant to Sections 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 9.06 or 11.07 of the Base Indenture and except for any 2044 Notes which, pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered.
- (g) The Initial 2054 Notes to be issued pursuant to the Indenture shall be issued and initially limited in aggregate principal amount to \$\frac{4}{3}\,\text{4}\,000,000,000\$ and shall mature on the Stated Maturity, unless the 2054 Notes are redeemed prior to that date as described in Article 5. The aggregate principal amount of Initial 2054 Notes Outstanding at any time may not exceed \$\frac{4}{9}\,000,000,000\$, except for 2054 Notes issued, authenticated and delivered upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for, or in lieu of, other 2054 Notes of the series pursuant to Sections 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 9.06 or 11.07 of the Base Indenture and except for any 2054 Notes which, pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered.
- (h) The Company may, without the consent of the Holders, issue additional 2029 Notes hereunder as part of the same series and on the same terms and conditions (and having the same Guarantors) and with the same CUSIP, ISIN and Common Code numbers as the Initial 2029 Notes initially issued, but may be offered at a different offering price or have a different issue date, initial interest accrual date or initial interest payment date ("Additional 2029 Notes"); provided that if any Additional 2029 Notes are issued at a price that causes such Additional 2029 Notes to have "original issue discount" within the meaning of Section 1273 of the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and regulations of the United States Department of Treasury thereunder (the "Code") or if any Additional 2029 Notes are not otherwise fungible with the Initial 2029

Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes, such Additional 2029 Notes shall not have the same CUSIP, ISIN or Common Code number as the Initial 2029 Notes.

- (i) The Company may, without the consent of the Holders, issue additional 2031 Notes hereunder as part of the same series and on the same terms and conditions (and having the same Guarantors) and with the same CUSIP, ISIN and Common Code numbers as the Initial 2031 Notes initially issued, but may be offered at a different offering price or have a different issue date, initial interest accrual date or initial interest payment date ("Additional 2031 Notes"); provided that if any Additional 2031 Notes are issued at a price that causes such Additional 2031 Notes to have "original issue discount" within the meaning of Section 1273 of the Code or if any Additional 2031 Notes are not otherwise fungible with the Initial 2031 Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes, such Additional 2031 Notes shall not have the same CUSIP, ISIN or Common Code number as the Initial 2031 Notes.
- (j) The Company may, without the consent of the Holders, issue additional 2034 Notes hereunder as part of the same series and on the same terms and conditions (and having the same Guarantors) and with the same CUSIP, ISIN and Common Code numbers as the Initial 2034 Notes initially issued, but may be offered at a different offering price or have a different issue date, initial interest accrual date or initial interest payment date ("Additional 2034 Notes"); provided that if any Additional 2034 Notes are issued at a price that causes such Additional 2034 Notes to have "original issue discount" within the meaning of Section 1273 of the Code or if any Additional 2034 Notes are not otherwise fungible with the Initial 2034 Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes, such Additional 2034 Notes shall not have the same CUSIP, ISIN or Common Code number as the Initial 2034 Notes.
- (k) The Company may, without the consent of the Holders, issue additional 2044 Notes hereunder as part of the same series and on the same terms and conditions (and having the same Guarantors) and with the same CUSIP, ISIN and Common Code numbers as the Initial 2044 Notes initially issued, but may be offered at a different offering price or have a different issue date, initial interest accrual date or initial interest payment date ("Additional 2044 Notes"); provided that if any Additional 2044 Notes are issued at a price that causes such Additional 2044 Notes to have "original issue discount" within the meaning of Section 1273 of the Code or if any Additional 2044 Notes are not otherwise fungible with the Initial 2044 Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes, such Additional 2044 Notes shall not have the same CUSIP, ISIN or Common Code number as the Initial 2044 Notes.
- (l) The Company may, without the consent of the Holders, issue additional 2054 Notes hereunder as part of the same series and on the same terms and conditions (and having the same Guarantors) and with the same CUSIP, ISIN and Common Code numbers as the Initial 2054 Notes initially issued, but may be offered at a different offering price or have a different issue date, initial interest accrual date or initial interest payment date ("Additional 2054 Notes"); and, collectively with the Additional 2029 Notes, Additional 2031 Notes, Additional 2034 Notes and Additional 2044 Notes, the "Additional Notes"); provided that if any Additional 2054 Notes are issued at a price

that causes such Additional 2054 Notes to have "original issue discount" within the meaning of Section 1273 of the Code or if any Additional 2054 Notes are not otherwise fungible with the Initial 2054 Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes, such Additional 2054 Notes shall not have the same CUSIP, ISIN or Common Code number as the Initial 2054 Notes.

- (m) The Notes shall be issued only in fully registered form without coupons in minimum denominations of \(\xi\)100,000,000 and any integral multiple of \(\xi\)10,000,000 in excess thereof.
- Section 1.02. *Interest*. (a) Interest on a 2029 Note will accrue at the per annum rate of 1.559%, from and including the date specified on the face of such 2029 Note to, but excluding, the date on which the principal thereof is paid, deemed paid, or made available for payment and, in each case, will be paid on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.
- (b) Interest on a 2031 Note will accrue at the per annum rate of 1.762%, from and including the date specified on the face of such 2031 Note to, but excluding, the date on which the principal thereof is paid, deemed paid, or made available for payment and, in each case, will be paid on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.
- (c) Interest on a 2034 Note will accrue at the per annum rate of 2.083%, from and including the date specified on the face of such 2034 Note to, but excluding, the date on which the principal thereof is paid, deemed paid, or made available for payment and, in each case, will be paid on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.
- (d) Interest on a 2044 Note will accrue at the per annum rate of 2.719%, from and including the date specified on the face of such 2044 Note to, but excluding, the date on which the principal thereof is paid, deemed paid, or made available for payment and, in each case, will be paid on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.
- (e) Interest on a 2054 Note will accrue at the per annum rate of 3.008%, from and including the date specified on the face of such 2054 Note to, but excluding, the date on which the principal thereof is paid, deemed paid, or made available for payment and, in each case, will be paid on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.
- (f) The Company shall pay interest on the Notes semi-annually in arrears on May 30 and November 30 of each year (each, an "**Interest Payment Date**"), commencing November 30, 2024, *provided* that the final Interest Payment Date of the 2029 Notes shall be May 30, 2029, the final Interest Payment Date of the 2031 Notes shall be May 30, 2031, the final Interest Payment Date of the 2044 Notes shall be May 27, 2044 and the final Interest Payment Date of the 2054 Notes shall be May 29, 2054.
- (g) Interest shall be paid on each Interest Payment Date to the registered Holders of the Notes as of the close of business on the Regular Record Date.

- (h) Amounts due on the Stated Maturity or earlier redemption date or repurchase date of the Notes will be payable at the office of the Paying Agent, 160 Queen Victoria Street, London, EC4V 4LA, United Kingdom, except as otherwise provided in the Notes. The Company shall make payments of principal, interest, Additional Amounts, Redemption Price or Repurchase Price (as defined below) in respect of the Notes in book-entry form to the Paying Agent in immediately available funds, while disbursement of such payments to owners of beneficial interests in Notes in book-entry form will be made in accordance with the procedures of the Paying Agent, the applicable Depositary and its participants in effect from time to time. The Company may at any time designate additional Paying Agents or rescind the designation of any Paying Agent or approve a change in the office through which any Paying Agent acts, except that the Company shall be required to maintain a Paying Agent in each Place of Payment for the Notes. Neither the Company nor the Trustee shall impose any service charge for any transfer or exchange of a Note. However, the Company may require Holders of the Notes to pay any taxes or other governmental charges in connection with a transfer or exchange of Notes. All moneys paid by the Company to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for the payment of principal, interest, Additional Amounts, Redemption Price or Repurchase Price on Notes which remain unclaimed at the end of two years after such principal, interest, Additional Amounts, Redemption Price or Repurchase Price has become due and payable will be repaid to the Company upon request, and the Holder of such Notes thereafter may look only to the Company for payment thereof.
- (i) If any Interest Payment Date, Stated Maturity, earlier redemption date or repurchase date falls on a day that is not a Business Day in the City of New York, the City of London or the City of Tokyo, the Company shall make the required payment of principal, premium or Additional Amounts, if any, Redemption Price or Repurchase Price and/or interest with respect to the Notes on the next succeeding Business Day as if it were made on the date payment was due, and no interest will accrue on the amount so payable for the period from and after that Interest Payment Date, Stated Maturity, earlier redemption or repurchase date, as the case may be, to such next succeeding Business Day.
- Section 1.03. *Payment*. All payments of principal of, the Redemption Price or Repurchase Price (if any) for, Additional Amounts (if any) payable with respect to, and interest on, the Notes will be payable in yen. If the yen is unavailable to the Company due to the imposition of exchange controls or other circumstances beyond the Company's control, then all payments in respect of the Notes will be made in U.S. dollars until the yen is again available to the Company or so used. In such circumstances, the amount payable on any date in yen will be converted into U.S. dollars at the noon buying rate in the City of New York for cable transfers of yen as certified for customs purposes (or, if not so certified, as otherwise determined) by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. Any payment in respect of the Notes so made in U.S. dollars will not constitute an Event of Default under the Notes, the Indenture or this Fourth Supplemental Indenture. In no event shall the Trustee or the Paying Agent be responsible for obtaining exchange rates, effective conversions or otherwise handling redenominations.

Section 1.04. *Relationship with Base Indenture*. The terms and provisions contained in the Base Indenture will constitute, and are hereby expressly made, a part of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture. However, to the extent any provision of the Base Indenture or the Second Supplemental Indenture conflicts with the express provisions of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture, the provisions of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture will govern and be controlling.

For purposes of the Notes and this Fourth Supplemental Indenture, the references in Sections 10.01 and 10.03 of the Base Indenture to "10:00 a.m. (New York City time) on" shall be replaced with "10:00 a.m. (London time) one business day prior to."

- Section 1.05. *Amendments to the Indenture.* (a) References to the "Trustee" in the Base Indenture in connection with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., acting as paying agent are hereby replaced with "The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch, as paying agent".
 - (b) The definition of "Depositary" under Section 1.01 of the Base Indenture shall be amended and restated as follows:
- "Depositary" means, with respect to Securities of any series issuable or issued as a Global Security, Euroclear Bank S.A/N.V. ("Euroclear") and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme ("Clearstream") or any of their respective successors.
 - (c) the definition of "Business Day" under Section 1.01 of the Base Indenture shall be amended and restated as follows:

"Business Day" means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, in the City of New York, the City of London or the City of Tokyo that is not a day on which banking institutions or trust companies are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close in the place where the principal of and Additional Amounts, if any, and interest on, or any Redemption Price or Repurchase Price of, the Notes are payable.

ARTICLE 2

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION

- Section 2.01. *Definitions*. For all purposes of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture (except as herein otherwise expressly provided or unless the context of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture otherwise requires):
 - (a) any reference to an "Article" or a "Section" refers to an Article or a Section, as the case may be, of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture;
- (b) the words "herein," "hereof" and "hereunder" and other words of similar import refer to this Fourth Supplemental Indenture as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or other subdivision;
 - (c) "including" means including without limitation;

- (d) "yen" and "\" refer to Japanese yen;
- (e) "dollars" and "\$" refer to U.S. dollars;
- (f) unless otherwise provided, references to agreements and other instruments shall be deemed to include all amendments and other modifications to such agreements and instruments, but only to the extent such amendments and other modifications are not prohibited by the terms of this Indenture; and
- (g) any reference in this Fourth Supplemental Indenture to a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership taking any action, holding or dealing with any property or having or exercising any power shall be to such exempted limited partnership acting through its general partner.

The terms defined in this Section 2.01 (except as herein otherwise expressly provided or unless the context of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture otherwise requires) for all purposes of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture and of any indenture supplemental hereto have the respective meanings specified in this Section 2.01. All other terms used in this Fourth Supplemental Indenture that are defined in the Base Indenture, either directly or by reference therein (except as herein otherwise expressly provided or unless the context of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture otherwise requires), have the respective meanings assigned to such terms in the Base Indenture, as in force at the date of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture as originally executed; *provided* that any term that is defined in both the Base Indenture and this Fourth Supplemental Indenture shall have the meaning assigned to such term in this Fourth Supplemental Indenture.

"2031 Notes Par Call Date" has the meaning specified in Section 5.01(a).

"2034 Notes Par Call Date" has the meaning specified in Section 5.01(b).

"2044 Notes Par Call Date" has the meaning specified in Section 5.01(c).

"2054 Notes Par Call Date" has the meaning specified in Section 5.01(d).

"Additional Amounts" has the meaning specified in Section 6.04(a).

"Additional Notes" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01(1).

"Applicable Par Call Date" means the 2031 Notes Par Call Date, the 2034 Notes Par Call Date, the 2044 Notes Par Call Date or the 2054 Notes Par Call Date, as applicable.

"Applicable Procedures" means, with respect to any transfer or transaction involving a Global Security or beneficial interest therein, the rules and procedures of the Depositary or DTC, in each case to the extent applicable to such transaction and as in effect from time to time.

"Below Investment Grade Rating Event" means the ratings on the Notes are lowered in respect of a Change of Control and the Notes are rated below Investment Grade by both Rating Agencies on any date from the date of the public notice of an arrangement that could result in a Change of Control until the end of the 60-day period following public notice of the occurrence of a Change of Control (which period shall be extended until the ratings are announced if during such 60-day period the ratings of the Notes are under publicly announced consideration for possible downgrade by either of the Rating Agencies); provided that a Below Investment Grade Rating Event otherwise arising by virtue of a particular reduction in ratings shall not be deemed to have occurred in respect of a particular Change of Control (and thus shall not be deemed a Below Investment Grade Rating Event for purposes of the definition of Change of Control Repurchase Event hereunder) if the Rating Agencies making the reduction in ratings to which this definition would otherwise apply do not announce or publicly confirm or inform the Company in writing at its request that the reduction was the result, in whole or in part, of any event or circumstance comprised of or arising as a result of, or in respect of, the applicable Change of Control (whether or not the applicable Change of Control shall have occurred at the time of the Below Investment Grade Rating Event). The Company will request the Rating Agencies to make such confirmation in connection with any Change of Control and shall promptly certify to the Trustee as to whether or not such confirmation has been received or denied.

"Change of Control" means the occurrence of the following:

- i. the direct or indirect sale, transfer, conveyance or other disposition (other than by way of merger or consolidation), in one or a series of related transactions, of all or substantially all of the combined assets of the Credit Group taken as a whole to any "person" (as that term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") or any successor provision), other than to a Continuing KKR Person; or
- ii. the consummation of any transaction (including, without limitation, any merger or consolidation) the result of which is that any "person" (as that term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act or any successor provision), other than a Continuing KKR Person, becomes the beneficial owner (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act or any successor provision) of a majority of the controlling interests in (i) the Corporation or (ii) one or more Guarantors that together hold all or substantially all of the assets of the Credit Group taken as whole.

"Change of Control Repurchase Event" means the occurrence of a Change of Control and a Below Investment Grade Rating Event.

"Close of Business" means 5:00 p.m., New York City time.

"Code" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01(h).

- "Commission" means the Securities and Exchange Commission or any successor entity.
- "Common Depositary" means The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch, as common depositary for the Depositary (or any successor thereto).
- "Continuing KKR Person" means, immediately prior to and immediately following any relevant date of determination, (i) an individual who (a) is an executive of the KKR Group, (b) devotes substantially all of his or her business and professional time to the activities of the KKR Group and (c) did not become an executive of the KKR Group or begin devoting substantially all of his or her business and professional time to the activities of the KKR Group in contemplation of a Change of Control, or (ii) any Person in which any one or more of such individuals directly or indirectly, singly or as a group, holds a majority of the controlling interests.
 - "Covenant Defeasance" has the meaning specified in Section 9.01.
- "Credit Party Jurisdiction" means a jurisdiction where a Credit Party is incorporated or considered to be a resident for tax purposes, if other than the United States.
 - "Event of Default" has the meaning specified in Section 4.01.
- "Existing Indebtedness" means indebtedness incurred under (i) the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of August 4, 2021 among Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P. and the KKR Group Partnerships (as defined therein), as borrowers, the other borrowers from time to time party thereto, the guarantors from time to time party thereto, the lenders party thereto, and HSBC Bank USA, National Association, as administrative agent, as amended through September 2, 2022; (ii) the Fourth Amended and Restated 5-Year Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of April 4, 2024 among KKR Capital Markets Holdings L.P., certain subsidiaries of KKR Capital Markets Holdings L.P., as borrowers, the lenders party thereto, and Mizuho Bank, Ltd., as administrative agent; and (iii) the 364-Day Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of April 4, 2024 among KKR Capital Markets Holdings L.P., as borrowers, the lenders party thereto, and Mizuho Bank, Ltd., as administrative agent, and in the case of each of clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) above, any amendments, supplements, modifications, extensions, renewals, restatements or refundings thereof and any indentures, notes, debentures or credit facilities or commercial paper facilities that replace, refund or refinance any part of the loans, notes, other credit facilities or commitments thereunder, including any such replacement, refunding or refinancing facility or indenture that alters the maturity or interest rate thereof, provided that the aggregate principal amount of Existing Indebtedness outstanding at any one time shall not exceed \$2.750 billion.

"FATCA Withholding Tax" shall mean any Tax withheld or deducted pursuant to an agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the Code or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code (or any amended or successor provisions that

are substantively comparable), any regulations or agreements thereunder or official interpretations thereof, or any intergovernmental agreement between the United States and another jurisdiction facilitating the implementation thereof (or any law, regulation or other official guidance implementing such an intergovernmental agreement).

"Fitch" means Fitch Ratings Inc. or any successor thereto.

- "Initial 2029 Notes" means 2029 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to \(\frac{\pmathbf{44}}{4,600,000,000}\) initially issued under this Fourth Supplemental Indenture in accordance with Section 1.01(c).
- "Initial 2031 Notes" means 2031 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to \(\xi\$1,000,000,000 initially issued under this Fourth Supplemental Indenture in accordance with Section 1.01(d).
- "Initial 2034 Notes" means 2034 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to \(\xi26,200,000,000\) initially issued under this Fourth Supplemental Indenture in accordance with Section 1.01(e).
- "Initial 2044 Notes" means 2044 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to \(\xi\)10,000,000,000 initially issued under this Fourth Supplemental Indenture in accordance with Section 1.01(f).
- "Initial 2054 Notes" means 2054 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$9,600,000,000 initially issued under this Fourth Supplemental Indenture in accordance with Section 1.01(g).
 - "Interest Payment Date" has the meaning specified in Section 1.02(f).
- "Investment Grade" means a rating of BBB- or better by Fitch (or its equivalent under any successor rating categories of Fitch) and BBB- or better by S&P (or its equivalent under any successor rating categories of S&P) (or, in each case, if such Rating Agency ceases to rate the Notes for reasons outside of the Company's control, the equivalent investment grade credit rating from any Rating Agency selected by the Company as a replacement Rating Agency).
- "KKR Group" means KKR Group Partnership, the direct and indirect parents (including, without limitation, general partners) of KKR Group Partnership (the "Parent Entities"), any direct or indirect subsidiaries of the Parent Entities or KKR Group Partnership, the general partner or similar controlling entities of any investment or vehicle that is managed, advised or sponsored by the KKR Group ("KKR Fund") and any other entity through which any of the foregoing directly or indirectly conduct its business, but shall exclude any company in which a KKR Fund has an investment.
 - "KKR Group Partnership" means KKR Group Partnership L.P. (acting through its general partner KKR Group Holdings Corp.).
 - "Notes" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01(b).

"Paying Agent" means The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch, as paying agent (or any successor thereto).

"Permitted Liens" means (a) liens on voting stock or profit participating equity interests of any Subsidiary existing at the time such entity becomes a direct or indirect Subsidiary of the Corporation or is merged into a direct or indirect Subsidiary of the Corporation (*provided* such liens are not created or incurred in connection with such transaction and do not extend to any other Subsidiary), (b) statutory liens, liens for taxes or assessments or governmental liens not yet due or delinquent or which can be paid without penalty or are being contested in good faith, (c) other liens of a similar nature as those described in subclauses (a) and (b) above, and (d) liens granted under Existing Indebtedness.

"Rating Agency" means:

- i. each of Fitch and S&P; and
- ii. if either of Fitch or S&P ceases to rate the Notes or fails to make a rating of the Notes publicly available for reasons outside of the Company's control, a "nationally recognized statistical rating organization" within the meaning of Section 3(a)(62) the Exchange Act selected by the Company as a replacement agency for Fitch or S&P, or both, as the case may be.
- "Registrar" means the Security Registrar for the Notes, which shall initially be The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., or any successor entity thereof, subject to replacement as set forth in the Base Indenture.
- "Regular Record Date" for interest payable in respect of any Note on any Interest Payment Date means May 15 or November 15, as applicable, immediately preceding the relevant Interest Payment Date (whether or not a Business Day).
 - "Relevant Jurisdiction" means the United States, any Credit Party Jurisdiction, and any Successor Person Jurisdiction.
 - "S&P" means S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global, Inc., or any successor thereto.
- "Stated Maturity" means, in the case of the 2029 Notes, May 30, 2029, in the case of the 2031 Notes, May 30, 2031, in the case of the 2034 Notes, May 30, 2034, in the case of the 2044 Notes, May 27, 2044 and in the case of the 2054 Notes, May 29, 2054.
- "Successor Person Jurisdiction" means a jurisdiction where a Successor Person is incorporated or considered to be a resident for tax purposes, if other than the United States.

"Taxes" has the meaning specified in Section 6.04(a).

ARTICLE 3 SECURITY FORMS

- Section 3.01. Form Generally. (a) The Notes shall be in substantially the form set forth in Section 3.02 of this Article 3, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions and other variations as are required or permitted by the Base Indenture and this Fourth Supplemental Indenture, and may have such letters, numbers or other marks of identification and such legends or endorsements placed thereon as may be required to comply with applicable tax laws or the rules of any securities exchange or Depositary therefor or as may, consistent herewith, be determined by the Officer executing such Notes, as evidenced by the execution thereof. All Notes shall be in fully registered form.
- (b) The Notes shall be printed, lithographed or engraved on steel engraved borders or may be produced in any other manner, all as determined by the Officer of the Company executing such Notes, as evidenced by the execution of such Notes.
- (c) Upon their original issuance, the Notes shall be issued in the form of one or more Global Securities in definitive, fully registered form without interest coupons. Each such Global Security shall be duly executed by the Company, authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and shall be registered in the name of the Common Depositary, or its nominees, and deposited with the Common Depositary. Beneficial interests in the Global Securities will be shown on, and transfers will only be made through, the records maintained by the Depositary and its participants.

Section 3.02. Form of Note.

[FORM OF FACE OF NOTE]

[THE FOLLOWING LEGEND SHALL APPEAR ON THE FACE OF EACH GLOBAL SECURITY SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT:

THIS SECURITY (INCLUDING THE RELATED GUARANTEES) HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION. NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR ANY INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION HEREIN MAY BE REOFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED, ENCUMBERED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN THE ABSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR UNLESS SUCH TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM, OR NOT SUBJECT TO, SUCH REGISTRATION. THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY, BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF, AGREES ON ITS OWN BEHALF AND ON BEHALF OF ANY INVESTOR ACCOUNT FOR WHICH IT HAS PURCHASED SECURITIES, TO OFFER, SELL OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER SUCH SECURITY, PRIOR TO THE DATE (THE "RESALE"

RESTRICTION TERMINATION DATE") THAT IS ONE YEAR AFTER THE LATER OF THE ISSUE DATE HEREOF OR ANY OTHER ISSUE DATE IN RESPECT OF A FURTHER ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OF THE SAME SERIES AND THE LAST DATE ON WHICH KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC OR ANY AFFILIATE OF KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC WAS THE OWNER OF THIS SECURITY (OR ANY PREDECESSOR OF SUCH SECURITY), ONLY (A) TO KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC, KKR & CO. INC., KKR GROUP PARTNERSHIP L.P. OR ANY SUBSIDIARY THEREOF, (B) PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION STATEMENT THAT HAS BEEN DECLARED EFFECTIVE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, (C) FOR SO LONG AS THE SECURITIES ARE ELIGIBLE FOR RESALE PURSUANT TO RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT ("RULE 144A"), TO A PERSON IT REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A "QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A THAT PURCHASES FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER TO WHOM NOTICE IS GIVEN THAT THE TRANSFER IS BEING MADE IN RELIANCE ON RULE 144A IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144A, (D) PURSUANT TO OFFERS AND SALES TO NON-U.S. PERSONS THAT OCCUR OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES WITHIN THE MEANING OF REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, (E) TO AN INSTITUTIONAL "ACCREDITED INVESTOR" WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 501(a)(1), (2), (3) OR (7) UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT THAT IS NOT A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER AND THAT IS PURCHASING FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF ANOTHER INSTITUTIONAL ACCREDITED INVESTOR, IN EACH CASE IN A MINIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE SECURITIES OF \$250,000 (OR YEN EQUIVALENT), FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES AND NOT WITH A VIEW TO OR FOR OFFER OR SALE IN CONNECTION WITH ANY DISTRIBUTION IN VIOLATION OF THE SECURITIES ACT OR (F) PURSUANT TO ANOTHER AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT, SUBJECT TO KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC'S AND THE TRUSTEE'S RIGHT PRIOR TO ANY SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER PURSUANT TO CLAUSES (D), (E) OR (F) TO REQUIRE THE DELIVERY OF AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, CERTIFICATION AND/ OR OTHER INFORMATION SATISFACTORY TO EACH OF THEM. THIS LEGEND WILL BE REMOVED UPON THE REQUEST OF THE HOLDER AFTER THE RESALE RESTRICTION TERMINATION DATE.]

[THE FOLLOWING LEGEND SHALL APPEAR ON THE FACE OF EACH GLOBAL SECURITY SOLD PURSUANT TO REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT:

THIS SECURITY (INCLUDING THE RELATED GUARANTEES) HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION. NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR ANY INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION HEREIN MAY BE REOFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED, ENCUMBERED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN THE ABSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR UNLESS SUCH TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM, OR NOT SUBJECT TO, SUCH REGISTRATION. THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY, BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF, AGREES ON ITS OWN BEHALF AND ON BEHALF OF ANY INVESTOR ACCOUNT FOR WHICH IT HAS PURCHASED SECURITIES, TO OFFER, SELL OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER SUCH SECURITY, PRIOR TO THE DATE (THE "RESALE RESTRICTION TERMINATION DATE") THAT IS 40 DAYS AFTER THE LATER OF THE ISSUE DATE HEREOF OR ANY OTHER ISSUE DATE IN RESPECT OF A FURTHER ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OF THE SAME SERIES AND THE LAST DATE ON WHICH KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC OR ANY AFFILIATE OF KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC WAS THE OWNER OF THIS SECURITY (OR ANY PREDECESSOR OF SUCH SECURITY), ONLY (A) TO KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC, KKR & CO. INC., KKR GROUP PARTNERSHIP L.P. OR ANY SUBSIDIARY THEREOF, (B) PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION STATEMENT THAT HAS BEEN DECLARED EFFECTIVE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, (C) FOR SO LONG AS THE SECURITIES ARE ELIGIBLE FOR RESALE PURSUANT TO RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT ("RULE 144A"), TO A PERSON IT REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A "QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A THAT PURCHASES FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER TO WHOM NOTICE IS GIVEN THAT THE TRANSFER IS BEING MADE IN RELIANCE ON RULE 144A IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144A, (D) PURSUANT TO OFFERS AND SALES TO NON-U.S. PERSONS THAT OCCUR OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES WITHIN THE MEANING OF REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, (E) TO AN INSTITUTIONAL "ACCREDITED INVESTOR" WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 501(a)(1), (2), (3) OR (7) UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT THAT IS NOT A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER AND THAT IS PURCHASING FOR ITS

OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF ANOTHER INSTITUTIONAL ACCREDITED INVESTOR, IN EACH CASE IN A MINIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE SECURITIES OF \$250,000 (OR YEN EQUIVALENT), FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES AND NOT WITH A VIEW TO OR FOR OFFER OR SALE IN CONNECTION WITH ANY DISTRIBUTION IN VIOLATION OF THE SECURITIES ACT OR (F) PURSUANT TO ANOTHER AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT, SUBJECT TO KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC'S AND THE TRUSTEE'S RIGHT PRIOR TO ANY SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER PURSUANT TO CLAUSES (D), (E) OR (F) TO REQUIRE THE DELIVERY OF AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, CERTIFICATION AND/OR OTHER INFORMATION SATISFACTORY TO EACH OF THEM. THIS LEGEND WILL BE REMOVED UPON THE REQUEST OF THE HOLDER AFTER THE RESALE RESTRICTION TERMINATION DATE. BY ITS ACQUISITION HEREOF, THE HOLDER HEREOF REPRESENTS THAT IT IS NOT A U.S. PERSON NOR IS IT PURCHASING FOR THE ACCOUNT OF A U.S. PERSON AND IS ACQUIRING THIS SECURITY IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.]

THE FOLLOWING LEGEND SHALL APPEAR ON THE FACE OF EACH GLOBAL SECURITY:

THIS DEBT SECURITY IS A GLOBAL SECURITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS DEBT SECURITY MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR A SECURITY REGISTERED, AND NO TRANSFER OF THIS DEBT SECURITY IN WHOLE OR IN PART MAY BE REGISTERED, IN THE NAME OF ANY PERSON OTHER THAN SUCH DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF, EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE.

UNLESS THIS CERTIFICATE IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF EUROCLEAR BANK, S.A./N.V., AS OPERATOR OF THE EUROCLEAR SYSTEM ("EUROCLEAR"), AND CLEARSTREAM BANKING, SOCIÉTÉ ANONYME, ("CLEARSTREAM" AND, TOGETHER WITH EUROCLEAR, "EUROCLEAR/CLEARSTREAM"), TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY CERTIFICATE ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF THE

BANK OF NEW YORK DEPOSITORY (NOMINEES) LIMITED OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF EUROCLEAR/CLEARSTREAM (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO THE BANK OF NEW YORK DEPOSITORY (NOMINEES) LIMITED OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF EUROCLEAR/CLEARSTREAM), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, THE BANK OF NEW YORK DEPOSITORY (NOMINEES) LIMITED, HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.]

[FORM OF 1.559% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2029]

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC

1.559% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2029

No.

CUSIP NO. 48255D AQ5 / U4950D AT7 ISIN NO. XS2823249037 / XS2823248732 Principal Amount ¥

COMMON CODE NO. 282324903 / 282324873
KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC, a limited liability company duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (herein called the "Company", which term includes any Successor Person under the Indenture referred to on the reverse hereof), for value received, hereby promises to pay to The Bank of New York Depositary (Nominees) Limited, as nominee of The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch, a common depositary for Euroclear Bank SA/NV ("Euroclear") and Clearstream Banking S.A. ("Clearstream"), or registered assigns, the principal sum of Japanese Yen (\frac{\xeta}{
excluding the next Interest Payment Date, which shall be May 30 and November 30 of each year, commencing November 30, 2024, at the per annum rate of
1.559%, until the principal hereof is paid or made available for payment.

For the purposes of this Note, the term "Business Day" means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is not a day on which banking institutions or trust companies in the City of New York, the City of London or the City of Tokyo are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close.

The interest so payable, and punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be May 15 or November 15, as applicable, immediately preceding the relevant Interest Payment Date (whether or not a Business Day). Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for will forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date and may either be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice of which shall be given to Holders of Notes not less than 10 days prior to the Special Record Date, or be paid at any time in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which such Notes may be listed, all as more fully provided in the Indenture. Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

The principal of, and premium, if any, and interest and Additional Amounts on, the Notes and the Repurchase Price in connection with a Change of Control Repurchase Event will be payable in Japanese Yen. The Issuer will cause the paying agent to pay such amounts, on the dates payment is to be made, directly to The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited.

The Issuer will pay the Holder hereof Additional Amounts with respect to withholding taxes as are provided for, and subject to the conditions stated, on the reverse of this Note.

This Note is being deposited with The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch acting as a common depositary of Euroclear and Clearstream, and registered in the name of The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited, a nominee of the common depositary. As Holder of record of this Note, The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited shall be entitled to receive payments of principal and interest. Payments of principal and interest, including any Additional Amounts, on this Note shall be made in the manner specified on the reverse of this Note and, to the extent not inconsistent with the provisions set forth herein, in the Indenture referred to herein.

The Notes constitute the direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated general obligations of the Company and shall at all times rank *pari passu* without any preference among themselves and with all other unsecured obligations of the Company, other than subordinated obligations of the Company and except for statutorily preferred obligations. The Notes are not redeemable prior to the Maturity Date, except as set forth on the reverse of this Note and will not be subject to any sinking fund.

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of this Note set forth on the reverse hereof, which further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee referred to on the reverse hereof by manual or electronic signature, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly executed.

		KKK C	broup Finance Co. At LLC
		By:	
			Name:James Rudy
			Title: Treasurer
Attest:			
By:		_	
	Name:Christopher Lee		
	Title: Secretary		
		19	

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This is one of the Securities of the series designated therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.

Dated:
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Trustee
By: Authorized Signatory
20

[FORM OF REVERSE OF NOTE]

1. Indenture. This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company designated as its "1.559% Senior Notes due 2029" (herein called the "Notes"), issued under a Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 30, 2024 (the "Fourth Supplemental Indenture"), to an indenture, dated as of April 26, 2022 (as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof, the "Base Indenture" and herein with the Fourth Supplemental Indenture, collectively, the "Indenture"), among the Company, the guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee," which term includes any successor trustee under the Indenture), to which reference is hereby made for a statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch (the "Paying Agent," which term includes any successor paying agent under the Indenture) and the Holders of the Notes and of the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. The aggregate principal amount of the Initial 2029 Notes Outstanding at any time may not exceed ¥44,600,000,000,000 in aggregate principal amount, except for, or in lieu of, other Notes of the series pursuant to Sections 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 9.06 or 11.07 of the Base Indenture and except for any Notes which, pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered. The Fourth Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which this Note is issued provides that Additional Notes may be issued thereunder.

All terms used in this Note which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this Note and the Indenture, the provisions of the Indenture shall govern.

- 2. Registrar and Paying Agent. The Company shall maintain in the Borough of Manhattan, the City of New York, an office or agency where Notes may be surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange and an office or agency where Notes may be presented for payment or for exchange. The Company has initially appointed The Bank of New York Mellon acting through its London Branch, as its Paying Agent and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as the Trustee and its Security Registrar. The Company reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent or Security Registrar, to appoint additional or other Paying Agents or other Security Registrars and to approve any change in the office through which any Paying Agent or Security Registrar acts.
- 3. Additional Amounts. All payments made by, or on behalf of, the Company under or with respect to the Notes, including, but not limited to, payments of principal and interest, will be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by any Relevant Jurisdiction or political subdivision or taxing authority of or in such Relevant Jurisdiction (collectively, "Taxes"), unless such withholding or deduction is required by law or by regulation or governmental policy having the force of law. In the event such withholding or deduction of Taxes is required by law, the Company will pay

to the Holder or beneficial owner of any Note such additional amounts ("Additional Amounts") as may be necessary in order that every net payment by the Company or any paying agent of principal of or interest on the Notes, after deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes, will not be less than the amount provided for in such Note to be then due and payable before deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes; provided that the Company's obligation to pay Additional Amounts shall not apply to:

- (i) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for:
- (A) the existence of any present or former connection between such Holder or beneficial owner (or between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such Holder or beneficial owner, if such Holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity) and any Relevant Jurisdiction, including, without limitation, such Holder or beneficial owner (or such fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member, shareholder or other equity owner or person having such a power) being or having been a citizen or resident or treated as a resident of such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been engaged in a trade or business in such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been present in such Relevant Jurisdiction;
- (B) the failure of such Holder or beneficial owner to comply with any applicable certification, information, documentation or other reporting requirement concerning the nationality, residence or identity of such Holder or beneficial owner, if compliance is required by statute or by regulation in any Relevant Jurisdiction as a precondition to relief or exemption from the Tax, and proper notice of such requirements has been sent to the Holder or beneficial owner with respect to a jurisdiction other than the United States; or
- (C) such Holder's or beneficial owner's present or former status as a personal holding company, foreign personal holding company, controlled foreign corporation, passive foreign investment company or foreign tax exempt organization with respect to the United States or as a corporation that accumulates earnings to avoid United States federal income tax;
- (ii) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted on interest received by (1) a "10-percent shareholder" of KKR Group Partnership or any Guarantor within the meaning of Section 871(h) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), (2) a controlled foreign corporation that is related to us within the meaning of Section 864(d)(4) of the Code, or (3) a bank receiving interest described in Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Code, to the extent such Taxes

would not have been imposed but for the beneficial owner's status as described in clauses (1) through (3) of this paragraph (ii);

- (iii) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for the presentation by the Holder or beneficial owner of such Note for payment on a date more than 30 days after the date on which such payment became due and payable or the date on which payment of the Note is duly provided for and notice is given to Holders, whichever occurs later, except to the extent that the Holder or beneficial owner would have been entitled to such Additional Amounts on presenting such Note on any date during such 30-day period;
 - (iv) any estate, inheritance, gift, sales, transfer, capital gains, personal property, excise, wealth, interest equalization or similar Taxes;
 - (v) any Taxes which are payable otherwise than by withholding from any payment of principal of or interest on such Note;
- (vi) any Taxes which are payable by a Holder that is not the beneficial owner of the Note, or a portion of the Note, or that is a fiduciary, partnership, limited liability company or other similar entity, but only to the extent that a beneficial owner, a beneficiary or settlor with respect to such fiduciary or member of such partnership, limited liability company or similar entity would not have been entitled to the payment of an Additional Amount had such beneficial owner, settlor, beneficiary or member received directly its beneficial or distributive share of the payment;
- (vii) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted under Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code (or any amended or successor provisions that are substantively comparable) and any current or future regulations or official interpretations thereof ("FATCA"), any agreement (including any intergovernmental agreement) entered into in connection therewith, or any law, regulation or other official guidance enacted in any jurisdiction implementing FATCA or an intergovernmental agreement in respect of FATCA; or
 - (viii) any combination of taxes referred to in the preceding clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v), (vi) and (vii).

For the purposes of this Note, the acquisition, ownership, enforcement or holding of or the receipt of any payment with respect to the Note will not constitute a connection (1) between the holder or beneficial owner and any Relevant Jurisdiction or (2) between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such holder or beneficial owner if such holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity and any Relevant Jurisdiction.

Any reference in this Note to principal or interest shall be deemed to refer also to Additional Amounts which may be payable under the provisions of the Indenture.

- 4. *Tax Redemption*. The Company may, at its option, redeem, as a whole, but not in part, this Note at any time prior to maturity on not less than 30 nor more than 60 calendar days' prior notice to the Holders, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount, together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for such redemption if:
- (a) the Company becomes or will become obligated to pay Additional Amounts as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws (or any regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder) of any Relevant Jurisdiction (or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein), or any change in, or amendment to, any official position regarding the application or interpretation of such laws, regulations or rulings, which change or amendment is announced or becomes effective on or after May 23, 2024, with respect to this Note for reasons outside the Company's, or, as the case may be, the Guarantor's, control and after taking reasonable measures available to the Company and the Guarantor to avoid such obligation; or
- (b) on or after May 30, 2024, any action is taken by a taxing authority of, or any action has been brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in, any Relevant Jurisdiction or any political subdivision of or in such Relevant Jurisdiction or any taxing authority thereof or therein, including any of those actions specified in clause (a) above, whether or not such action was taken or brought with respect to the Company, or there is any change, amendment, clarification, application or interpretation of such laws, regulations, treaties or rulings, which in any such case, will result in a material probability that the Company will be required to pay Additional Amounts with respect to this Note (it being understood that such material probability will be deemed to result if the written opinion of independent tax counsel to such effect is delivered to the Trustee and the Paying Agent).

Prior to the mailing of any notice of redemption pursuant to this section, the Company shall deliver to the Trustee:

- (1) a certificate signed by one of its duly authorized officers stating that the Company is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent to the Company's right so to redeem have occurred, and
- (2) a written opinion of independent legal counsel of recognized standing to the effect that the Company has or will become obligated to pay such Additional Amounts as a result of such change or amendment.

Such notice, once delivered by the Company to the Trustee, shall be irrevocable.

5. Change of Control Repurchase Event. In the event of a Change of Control Repurchase Event, unless the Company has exercised its option to redeem the Notes, the Company will make an offer to each Holder of Notes to repurchase all or any part of that Holder's Notes at a Repurchase Price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of Notes repurchased plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, pursuant to Section 6.02 of the Fourth Supplemental Indenture.

- 6. Global Security. If this Note is a Global Security, then, in the event of a deposit or withdrawal of an interest in this Note, including an exchange, transfer, redemption, repurchase or conversion of this Note in part only, the Common Depositary, as custodian of the Depositary, shall make an adjustment on its records to reflect such deposit or withdrawal in accordance with the Applicable Procedures.
- 7. Defaults and Remedies. If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the principal of all the Notes may be declared due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture. Upon payment of the amount of principal so declared due and payable, all obligations of the Company in respect of the payment of the principal of and interest on the Notes shall terminate.

No Holder of Notes shall have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver, assignee, trustee, liquidator or sequestrator (or similar official) or for any other remedy hereunder (except actions for payment of overdue principal of, and premium, if any, or interest on such Notes in accordance with its terms), unless (i) such Holder has previously given written notice to the Trustee of a continuing Event of Default, specifying an Event of Default, as required under the Indenture; (ii) the Holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes shall have made written request to the Trustee to institute proceedings in respect of such Event of Default in its own name as Trustee under the Indenture; (iii) such Holder or Holders have offered to the Trustee indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request; (iv) the Trustee has failed to institute any such proceeding for 60 days after its receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity; and (v) no direction inconsistent with such written request has been given to the Trustee during such 60-day period by the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes, it being understood and intended that no one or more of such Holders shall have any right in any manner whatever by virtue of, or by availing of, any provision of the Indenture to affect, disturb or prejudice the rights of any other of such Holders, or to obtain or to seek to obtain priority or preference over any other of such Holders or to enforce any right under the Indenture, except in the manner provided in the Indenture and for the equal and ratable benefit of all of such Holders.

The foregoing shall not apply to any suit instituted by the Holder of this Note for the enforcement of any payment of principal of, and premium, if any, or interest hereon, on or after the respective due dates expressed or provided for herein.

8. Amendment, Supplement and Waiver. The Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment thereof and the modification of the rights and obligations of the Company and the rights of the Holders of the Notes under the Indenture at any time by the Company and the Trustee with the written consent of the Holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes. The Indenture also contains provisions permitting the Holders of specified percentages in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes, on behalf of the Holders of all the Notes, to waive compliance by the Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and certain past defaults under the Indenture and their consequences. Any such consent or

waiver by the Holder of this Note shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holder and upon all future Holders of this Note and of any Note issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange herefor or in lieu hereof whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon this Note or such other Note. Certain modifications or amendments to the Indenture require the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Note affected.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair (without the consent of the Holder hereof) the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Note at the times, places and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

9. Registration and Transfer. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, the transfer of this Note is registerable on the Security Register. Upon surrender for registration of transfer of this Note at the office or agency of the Company in a Place of Payment, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in the name of the designated transferees, one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, at the option of the Holder, this Note may be exchanged for one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount, upon surrender of this Note at such office or agency. Upon such surrender by the Holder, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount. Every Note presented or surrendered for registration of transfer or for exchange shall be duly endorsed (if so required by the Company or the Trustee), or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company and the Security Registrar duly executed, by the Holder thereof or such Holder's attorney duly authorized in writing. No service charge shall be made for any such registration of transfer or exchange, but the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection therewith.

Prior to due presentment of this Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee and any agent of the Company, a Guarantor or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name such Note is registered as the owner thereof for all purposes (except as otherwise provided in the Indenture), whether or not such Note be overdue, and neither the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee nor any agent of the Company, a Guarantor or the Trustee shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

10. Guarantee. As expressly set forth in the Base Indenture, payment of this Note is jointly and severally and fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Guarantors that have become and continue to be Guarantors pursuant to the Indenture. Guarantors may be released from their obligations under the Indenture and their Guarantees under the circumstances specified in the Base Indenture.

11. Governing Law. THE INDENTURE, THIS NOTE AND THE GUARANTEES SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

ABBREVIATIONS

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription of the face of this Note, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM (= tenant in common)

TEN ENT (= tenants by the entireties (Cust))

JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common) UNIF GIFT MIN ACT (= under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.

ASSIGNMENT FORM

To as	sign this Note, fill	in the form below:
(I) or (we) assi	ign and transfer th	is Note to:
		(Insert assignee's legal name)
		(Insert assignee's soc. sec. or tax I.D. no.)
		(Print or type assignee's name, address and zip code)
and irrevocabl	y appoint	
		, as agent, to transfer this Note on the books of the Company. The agent
may substitute	e another to act for	r him.
specified in Ru	ıle 144(d) under tl	ent of the Notes evidenced by this certificate occurring prior to the date that is one year or six months, as the case may be (as the Securities Act), after the later of the date of original issuance of such Notes and the last date, if any, on which such Notes any affiliate of the Company, the undersigned confirms that such Notes are being:
CHECK ONE	BOX BELOW:	
1		acquired for the undersigned's own account, without transfer; or
2		transferred to the Company; or
3		transferred pursuant to and in compliance with Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"); or
4		transferred pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act; or
5		transferred pursuance to and in compliance with Regulation S promulgated under the Securities Act; or
6		transferred to an institutional "accredited investor" (as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3), or (7) under the Securities Act) that, prior to such

28

7		transferred pursuant to another ava	ilable exemption f	from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
than the register the Notes, in its is being made po	red holder there sole discretion, ursuant to an ex	of; provided, however, that if box (5 such legal opinions, certifications a	(i), (6) or (7) is checand other informati	f the Notes evidenced by this certificate in the name of any Person other ecked, the Company may require, prior to registering any such transfer of tion as the Company may reasonably request to confirm that such transfer egistration requirements of the Securities Act, such as the exemption
Dated:		Signature:		
Signature Guara	intee:			
(Signature must	be guaranteed)		Sig	gnature
TO BE COMP The un sole investment	an approved sig LETED BY PU ndersigned rep t discretion and	nature guarantee medallion program JRCHASER IF (1) OR (3) ABOVI resents and warrants that it is pur I that it and any such account is a	n), pursuant to Rule E IS CHECKED. rchasing this Note "qualified institu	panks, stockbrokers, savings and loan associations and credit unions with le 17Ad-15 of the Securities Exchange Act. The for its own account or an account with respect to which it exercises utional buyer" within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities hulgated under the Securities Act and acknowledges that it has
received such in	nformation reg d that it is awa	arding the Company as the under are that the transferor is relying up	rsigned has reque	ested pursuant to Rule 144A or has determined not to request such med's foregoing representations in order to claim the exemption from
Dated:		Signatur	re:	
			29	

transfer, furnished the Trustee with a signed letter containing certain representations and agreements relating to the transfer; or

[SCHEDULE OF INCREASES AND DECREASES IN NOTE

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC

1.559% Senior Note due 2029

	Amount of decrease in Principal Amount of this	Amount of increase in Principal Amount of this	Principal Amount of this Note following such decrease or	Signature of authorized officer of
Date	Note	Note	<u>increase</u>	Trustee] ¹
¹ Insert for Global	Securities only			

[FORM OF 1.762% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2031]

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC

1.762% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2031

No	Principal Amount ¥
CUSIP NO. 48255D AS1 / U4950D AV2	
ISIN NO. XS2823253732 / XS2823250803	
COMMON CODE NO. 282325373 / 282325080	

KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC, a limited liability company duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (herein called the "Company", which term includes any Successor Person under the Indenture referred to on the reverse hereof), for value received, hereby promises to pay to The Bank of New York Depositary (Nominees) Limited, as nominee of The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch, a common depositary for Euroclear Bank SA/NV ("Euroclear") and Clearstream Banking S.A. ("Clearstream"), or registered assigns, the principal sum of ______ Japanese Yen (\(\frac{\xeta}{________}\)), or such other principal amount as shall be set forth in the Schedule of Increases and Decreases in Note attached hereto, on May 30, 2031 (the "Maturity Date") and to pay interest thereon, from May 30, 2024, or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for to but excluding the next Interest Payment Date, which shall be May 30 and November 30 of each year, commencing November 30, 2024, at the per annum rate of 1.762%, until the principal hereof is paid or made available for payment.

For the purposes of this Note, the term "Business Day" means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is not a day on which banking institutions or trust companies in the City of New York, the City of London or the City of Tokyo are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close.

The interest so payable, and punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be May 15 or November 15, as applicable, immediately preceding the relevant Interest Payment Date (whether or not a Business Day). Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for will forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date and may either be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice of which shall be given to Holders of Notes not less than 10 days prior to the Special Record Date, or be paid at any time in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which such Notes may be listed, all as more fully provided in the Indenture. Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

The principal of, and premium, if any, and interest and Additional Amounts on, the Notes and the Repurchase Price in connection with a Change of Control Repurchase Event will be payable in Japanese Yen. The Issuer will cause the paying agent to pay such amounts, on the dates payment is to be made, directly to The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited.

The Issuer will pay the Holder hereof Additional Amounts with respect to withholding taxes as are provided for, and subject to the conditions stated, on the reverse of this Note.

This Note is being deposited with The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch acting as a common depositary of Euroclear and Clearstream, and registered in the name of The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited, a nominee of the common depositary. As Holder of record of this Note, The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited shall be entitled to receive payments of principal and interest. Payments of principal and interest, including any Additional Amounts, on this Note shall be made in the manner specified on the reverse of this Note and, to the extent not inconsistent with the provisions set forth herein, in the Indenture referred to herein.

The Notes constitute the direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated general obligations of the Company and shall at all times rank *pari passu* without any preference among themselves and with all other unsecured obligations of the Company, other than subordinated obligations of the Company and except for statutorily preferred obligations. The Notes are not redeemable prior to the Maturity Date, except as set forth on the reverse of this Note and will not be subject to any sinking fund.

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of this Note set forth on the reverse hereof, which further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee referred to on the reverse hereof by manual or electronic signature, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly executed.

KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC

By:

Name:James Rudy Title: Treasurer Attest:
By:

Name:Christopher Lee Title: Secretary

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This is one of the Securities of the series designated therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.

[FORM OF REVERSE OF NOTE]

1. Indenture. This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company designated as its "1.762% Senior Notes due 2031" (herein called the "Notes"), issued under a Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 30, 2024 (the "Fourth Supplemental Indenture"), to an indenture, dated as of April 26, 2022 (as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof, the "Base Indenture" and herein with the Fourth Supplemental Indenture, collectively, the "Indenture"), among the Company, the guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee," which term includes any successor trustee under the Indenture), to which reference is hereby made for a statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch (the "Paying Agent," which term includes any successor paying agent under the Indenture) and the Holders of the Notes and of the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. The aggregate principal amount of the Initial 2031 Notes Outstanding at any time may not exceed ¥1,000,000,000 in aggregate principal amount, except for, or in lieu of, other Notes of the series pursuant to Sections 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 9.06 or 11.07 of the Base Indenture and except for any Notes which, pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered. The Fourth Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which this Note is issued provides that Additional Notes may be issued thereunder.

All terms used in this Note which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this Note and the Indenture, the provisions of the Indenture shall govern.

- 2. Registrar and Paying Agent. The Company shall maintain in the Borough of Manhattan, the City of New York, an office or agency where Notes may be surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange and an office or agency where Notes may be presented for payment or for exchange. The Company has initially appointed The Bank of New York Mellon acting through its London Branch, as its Paying Agent and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as the Trustee and its Security Registrar. The Company reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent or Security Registrar, to appoint additional or other Paying Agents or other Security Registrars and to approve any change in the office through which any Paying Agent or Security Registrar acts.
- 3. Additional Amounts. All payments made by, or on behalf of, the Company under or with respect to the Notes, including, but not limited to, payments of principal and interest, will be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by any Relevant Jurisdiction or political subdivision or taxing authority of or in such Relevant Jurisdiction (collectively, "Taxes"), unless such withholding or deduction is required by law or by regulation or governmental policy having the force of law. In the event such withholding or deduction of Taxes is required by law, the Company will pay

to the Holder or beneficial owner of any Note such additional amounts ("Additional Amounts") as may be necessary in order that every net payment by the Company or any paying agent of principal of or interest on the Notes, after deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes, will not be less than the amount provided for in such Note to be then due and payable before deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes; provided that the Company's obligation to pay Additional Amounts shall not apply to:

- (i) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for:
- (A) the existence of any present or former connection between such Holder or beneficial owner (or between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such Holder or beneficial owner, if such Holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity) and any Relevant Jurisdiction, including, without limitation, such Holder or beneficial owner (or such fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member, shareholder or other equity owner or person having such a power) being or having been a citizen or resident or treated as a resident of such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been engaged in a trade or business in such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been present in such Relevant Jurisdiction;
- (B) the failure of such Holder or beneficial owner to comply with any applicable certification, information, documentation or other reporting requirement concerning the nationality, residence or identity of such Holder or beneficial owner, if compliance is required by statute or by regulation in any Relevant Jurisdiction as a precondition to relief or exemption from the Tax, and proper notice of such requirements has been sent to the Holder or beneficial owner with respect to a jurisdiction other than the United States; or
- (C) such Holder's or beneficial owner's present or former status as a personal holding company, foreign personal holding company, controlled foreign corporation, passive foreign investment company or foreign tax exempt organization with respect to the United States or as a corporation that accumulates earnings to avoid United States federal income tax;
- (ii) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted on interest received by (1) a "10-percent shareholder" of KKR Group Partnership or any Guarantor within the meaning of Section 871(h) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), (2) a controlled foreign corporation that is related to us within the meaning of Section 864(d)(4) of the Code, or (3) a bank receiving interest described in Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Code, to the extent such Taxes

would not have been imposed but for the beneficial owner's status as described in clauses (1) through (3) of this paragraph (ii);

- (iii) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for the presentation by the Holder or beneficial owner of such Note for payment on a date more than 30 days after the date on which such payment became due and payable or the date on which payment of the Note is duly provided for and notice is given to Holders, whichever occurs later, except to the extent that the Holder or beneficial owner would have been entitled to such Additional Amounts on presenting such Note on any date during such 30-day period;
 - (iv) any estate, inheritance, gift, sales, transfer, capital gains, personal property, excise, wealth, interest equalization or similar Taxes;
 - (v) any Taxes which are payable otherwise than by withholding from any payment of principal of or interest on such Note;
- (vi) any Taxes which are payable by a Holder that is not the beneficial owner of the Note, or a portion of the Note, or that is a fiduciary, partnership, limited liability company or other similar entity, but only to the extent that a beneficial owner, a beneficiary or settlor with respect to such fiduciary or member of such partnership, limited liability company or similar entity would not have been entitled to the payment of an Additional Amount had such beneficial owner, settlor, beneficiary or member received directly its beneficial or distributive share of the payment;
- (vii) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted under Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code (or any amended or successor provisions that are substantively comparable) and any current or future regulations or official interpretations thereof ("FATCA"), any agreement (including any intergovernmental agreement) entered into in connection therewith, or any law, regulation or other official guidance enacted in any jurisdiction implementing FATCA or an intergovernmental agreement in respect of FATCA; or
 - (viii) any combination of taxes referred to in the preceding clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v), (vi) and (vii).

For the purposes of this Note, the acquisition, ownership, enforcement or holding of or the receipt of any payment with respect to the Note will not constitute a connection (1) between the holder or beneficial owner and any Relevant Jurisdiction or (2) between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such holder or beneficial owner if such holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity and any Relevant Jurisdiction.

Any reference in this Note to principal or interest shall be deemed to refer also to Additional Amounts which may be payable under the provisions of the Indenture.

4. Optional Redemption. Prior to March 30, 2031 (two months prior to their maturity date) (the "Par Call Date"), the Company may redeem the Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed to, but not including, the redemption date.

The Company shall give the Trustee notice of the Redemption Price with respect to any redemption pursuant to the preceding paragraph as soon as practicable after the calculation thereof and the Trustee shall have no responsibility for such calculation. Any notice of any redemption may, at the Company's discretion, be subject to one or more conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, completion of a securities offering or other corporate transaction.

On or after the Par Call Date, the Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to, but not including, the redemption date.

The Company's actions and determinations in determining the Redemption Price shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

- 5. Tax Redemption. The Company may, at its option, redeem, as a whole, but not in part, this Note at any time prior to maturity on not less than 30 nor more than 60 calendar days' prior notice to the Holders, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount, together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for such redemption if:
- (a) the Company becomes or will become obligated to pay Additional Amounts as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws (or any regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder) of any Relevant Jurisdiction (or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein), or any change in, or amendment to, any official position regarding the application or interpretation of such laws, regulations or rulings, which change or amendment is announced or becomes effective on or after May 23, 2024, with respect to this Note for reasons outside the Company's, or, as the case may be, the Guarantor's, control and after taking reasonable measures available to the Company and the Guarantor to avoid such obligation; or
- (b) on or after May 30, 2024, any action is taken by a taxing authority of, or any action has been brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in, any Relevant Jurisdiction or any political subdivision of or in such Relevant Jurisdiction or any taxing authority thereof or therein, including any of those actions specified in clause (a) above, whether or not such action was taken or brought with respect to the Company, or there is any change, amendment, clarification, application or interpretation of such laws, regulations, treaties or rulings, which in any such case, will result in a material probability that the Company will be required to pay Additional Amounts with respect to this Note (it being understood

that such material probability will be deemed to result if the written opinion of independent tax counsel to such effect is delivered to the Trustee and the Paying Agent).

Prior to the mailing of any notice of redemption pursuant to this section, the Company shall deliver to the Trustee:

- (1) a certificate signed by one of its duly authorized officers stating that the Company is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent to the Company's right so to redeem have occurred, and
- (2) a written opinion of independent legal counsel of recognized standing to the effect that the Company has or will become obligated to pay such Additional Amounts as a result of such change or amendment.

Such notice, once delivered by the Company to the Trustee, shall be irrevocable.

- 6. Change of Control Repurchase Event. In the event of a Change of Control Repurchase Event, unless the Company has exercised its option to redeem the Notes, the Company will make an offer to each Holder of Notes to repurchase all or any part of that Holder's Notes at a Repurchase Price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of Notes repurchased plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, pursuant to Section 6.02 of the Fourth Supplemental Indenture.
- 7. Global Security. If this Note is a Global Security, then, in the event of a deposit or withdrawal of an interest in this Note, including an exchange, transfer, redemption, repurchase or conversion of this Note in part only, the Common Depositary, as custodian of the Depositary, shall make an adjustment on its records to reflect such deposit or withdrawal in accordance with the Applicable Procedures.
- 8. Defaults and Remedies. If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the principal of all the Notes may be declared due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture. Upon payment of the amount of principal so declared due and payable, all obligations of the Company in respect of the payment of the principal of and interest on the Notes shall terminate.

No Holder of Notes shall have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver, assignee, trustee, liquidator or sequestrator (or similar official) or for any other remedy hereunder (except actions for payment of overdue principal of, and premium, if any, or interest on such Notes in accordance with its terms), unless (i) such Holder has previously given written notice to the Trustee of a continuing Event of Default, specifying an Event of Default, as required under the Indenture; (ii) the Holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes shall have made written request to the Trustee to institute proceedings in respect of such Event of Default in its own name as Trustee under the Indenture; (iii) such Holder or Holders have offered to the Trustee indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request; (iv) the Trustee has failed to institute any such

proceeding for 60 days after its receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity; and (v) no direction inconsistent with such written request has been given to the Trustee during such 60-day period by the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes, it being understood and intended that no one or more of such Holders shall have any right in any manner whatever by virtue of, or by availing of, any provision of the Indenture to affect, disturb or prejudice the rights of any other of such Holders, or to obtain or to seek to obtain priority or preference over any other of such Holders or to enforce any right under the Indenture, except in the manner provided in the Indenture and for the equal and ratable benefit of all of such Holders.

The foregoing shall not apply to any suit instituted by the Holder of this Note for the enforcement of any payment of principal of, and premium, if any, or interest hereon, on or after the respective due dates expressed or provided for herein.

9. Amendment, Supplement and Waiver. The Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment thereof and the modification of the rights and obligations of the Company and the rights of the Holders of the Notes under the Indenture at any time by the Company and the Trustee with the written consent of the Holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes. The Indenture also contains provisions permitting the Holders of specified percentages in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes, on behalf of the Holders of all the Notes, to waive compliance by the Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and certain past defaults under the Indenture and their consequences. Any such consent or waiver by the Holder of this Note shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holder and upon all future Holders of this Note and of any Note issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange herefor or in lieu hereof whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon this Note or such other Note. Certain modifications or amendments to the Indenture require the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Note affected.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair (without the consent of the Holder hereof) the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Note at the times, places and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

10. Registration and Transfer. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, the transfer of this Note is registerable on the Security Register. Upon surrender for registration of transfer of this Note at the office or agency of the Company in a Place of Payment, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, at the option of the Holder, this Note may be exchanged for one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount, upon surrender of this Note at such office or agency. Upon such surrender by the Holder, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in the name of the designated

transferee or transferees, one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount. Every Note presented or surrendered for registration of transfer or for exchange shall be duly endorsed (if so required by the Company or the Trustee), or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company and the Security Registrar duly executed, by the Holder thereof or such Holder's attorney duly authorized in writing. No service charge shall be made for any such registration of transfer or exchange, but the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection therewith.

Prior to due presentment of this Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee and any agent of the Company, a Guarantor or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name such Note is registered as the owner thereof for all purposes (except as otherwise provided in the Indenture), whether or not such Note be overdue, and neither the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee nor any agent of the Company, a Guarantor or the Trustee shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

11. *Guarantee*. As expressly set forth in the Base Indenture, payment of this Note is jointly and severally and fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Guarantors that have become and continue to be Guarantors pursuant to the Indenture. Guarantors may be released from their obligations under the Indenture and their Guarantees under the circumstances specified in the Base Indenture.

12. Governing Law. THE INDENTURE, THIS NOTE AND THE GUARANTEES SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

ABBREVIATIONS

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription of the face of this Note, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM (= tenant in common)

TEN ENT (= tenants by the entireties (Cust))

JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common) UNIF GIFT MIN ACT (= under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.

ASSIGNMENT FORM

To ass	ign this Note,	fill in the form below:
(I) or (we) assig	gn and transfer	this Note to:
		(Insert assignee's legal name)
		(Insert assignee's soc. sec. or tax I.D. no.)
		(Print or type assignee's name, address and zip code)
and irrevocably	appoint	
		, as agent, to transfer this Note on the books of the Company. The agent
may substitute	another to act	for him.
specified in Ru	le 144(d) unde	ment of the Notes evidenced by this certificate occurring prior to the date that is one year or six months, as the case may be (as r the Securities Act), after the later of the date of original issuance of such Notes and the last date, if any, on which such Notes or any affiliate of the Company, the undersigned confirms that such Notes are being:
CHECK ONE	BOX BELOW	:
1		acquired for the undersigned's own account, without transfer; or
2		transferred to the Company; or
3		transferred pursuant to and in compliance with Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"); or
4		transferred pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act; or
5		transferred pursuance to and in compliance with Regulation S promulgated under the Securities Act; or
6		transferred to an institutional "accredited investor" (as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3), or (7) under the Securities Act) that, prior to such
		42

7		transferred pursuant to another available	exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
than the register the Notes, in its is being made pu provided by Rul	ed holder the sole discretion ursuant to an	reof; provided, however, that if box (5), (6) on, such legal opinions, certifications and oth exemption from, or in a transaction not subjulgated under the Securities Act.	egister any of the Notes evidenced by this certificate in the name of any Person other or (7) is checked, the Company may require, prior to registering any such transfer of her information as the Company may reasonably request to confirm that such transfer ject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act, such as the exemption
Dated:		Signature:	
Signature Guara	ntee:		
(Signature must	be guarantee	d)	Signature
membership in a TO BE COMPI The un	nn approved s LETED BY idersigned re	ignature guarantee medallion program), pur PURCHASER IF (1) OR (3) ABOVE IS Corresents and warrants that it is purchasi	ing this Note for its own account or an account with respect to which it exercises
sole investment discretion and that it and any such account is a "qualified institutional buyer" within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act, and is aware that the sale to it is being made in reliance on Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act and acknowledges that it has received such information regarding the Company as the undersigned has requested pursuant to Rule 144A or has determined not to request such information and that it is aware that the transferor is relying upon the undersigned's foregoing representations in order to claim the exemption from registration provided by Rule 144A.			
Dated:		Signa	uture:
			43

transfer, furnished the Trustee with a signed letter containing certain representations and agreements relating to the transfer; or

[SCHEDULE OF INCREASES AND DECREASES IN NOTE

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC

1.762% Senior Note due 2031

Date	Amount of decrease in Principal Amount of this Note	Amount of increase in Principal Amount of this Note	Principal Amount of this Note following such decrease or increase	Signature o authorized officer of Trusteel ²
² Insert for Global Se	-			

[FORM OF 2.083% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2034]

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC

2.083% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2034

No	Principal Amount ¥
CUSIP NO. 48255D AT9 / U4950D AW0	
ISIN NO. XS2823254037 / XS2823253906	
COMMON CODE NO. 282325403 / 282325390	

KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC, a limited liability company duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (herein called the "Company", which term includes any Successor Person under the Indenture referred to on the reverse hereof), for value received, hereby promises to pay to The Bank of New York Depositary (Nominees) Limited, as nominee of The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch, a common depositary for Euroclear Bank SA/NV ("Euroclear") and Clearstream Banking S.A. ("Clearstream"), or registered assigns, the principal sum of ______ Japanese Yen (\(\frac{\pmanumenture{\pm

For the purposes of this Note, the term "Business Day" means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is not a day on which banking institutions or trust companies in the City of New York, the City of London or the City of Tokyo are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close.

The interest so payable, and punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be May 15 or November 15, as applicable, immediately preceding the relevant Interest Payment Date (whether or not a Business Day). Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for will forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date and may either be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice of which shall be given to Holders of Notes not less than 10 days prior to the Special Record Date, or be paid at any time in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which such Notes may be listed, all as more fully provided in the Indenture. Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

The principal of, and premium, if any, and interest and Additional Amounts on, the Notes and the Repurchase Price in connection with a Change of Control Repurchase Event will be payable in Japanese Yen. The Issuer will cause the paying agent to pay such amounts, on the dates payment is to be made, directly to The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited.

The Issuer will pay the Holder hereof Additional Amounts with respect to withholding taxes as are provided for, and subject to the conditions stated, on the reverse of this Note.

This Note is being deposited with The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch acting as a common depositary of Euroclear and Clearstream, and registered in the name of The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited, a nominee of the common depositary. As Holder of record of this Note, The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited shall be entitled to receive payments of principal and interest. Payments of principal and interest, including any Additional Amounts, on this Note shall be made in the manner specified on the reverse of this Note and, to the extent not inconsistent with the provisions set forth herein, in the Indenture referred to herein.

The Notes constitute the direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated general obligations of the Company and shall at all times rank *pari passu* without any preference among themselves and with all other unsecured obligations of the Company, other than subordinated obligations of the Company and except for statutorily preferred obligations. The Notes are not redeemable prior to the Maturity Date, except as set forth on the reverse of this Note and will not be subject to any sinking fund.

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of this Note set forth on the reverse hereof, which further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee referred to on the reverse hereof by manual or electronic signature, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly executed.

KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC

By:

Name:James Rudy Title: Treasurer Attest:

By:

Name:Christopher Lee Title: Secretary

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This is one of the Securities of the series designated therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.

Dated:
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Trustee
By: Authorized Signatory
48

[FORM OF REVERSE OF NOTE]

1. Indenture. This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company designated as its "2.083% Senior Notes due 2034" (herein called the "Notes"), issued under a Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 30, 2024 (the "Fourth Supplemental Indenture"), to an indenture, dated as of April 26, 2022 (as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof, the "Base Indenture" and herein with the Fourth Supplemental Indenture, collectively, the "Indenture"), among the Company, the guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee," which term includes any successor trustee under the Indenture), to which reference is hereby made for a statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch (the "Paying Agent," which term includes any successor paying agent under the Indenture) and the Holders of the Notes and of the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. The aggregate principal amount of the Initial 2034 Notes Outstanding at any time may not exceed \(\frac{1}{2}\)26,200,000,000,000 in aggregate principal amount, except for, or in lieu of, other Notes of the series pursuant to Sections 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 9.06 or 11.07 of the Base Indenture and except for any Notes which, pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered. The Fourth Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which this Note is issued provides that Additional Notes may be issued thereunder.

All terms used in this Note which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this Note and the Indenture, the provisions of the Indenture shall govern.

- 2. Registrar and Paying Agent. The Company shall maintain in the Borough of Manhattan, the City of New York, an office or agency where Notes may be surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange and an office or agency where Notes may be presented for payment or for exchange. The Company has initially appointed The Bank of New York Mellon acting through its London Branch, as its Paying Agent and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as the Trustee and its Security Registrar. The Company reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent or Security Registrar, to appoint additional or other Paying Agents or other Security Registrars and to approve any change in the office through which any Paying Agent or Security Registrar acts.
- 3. Additional Amounts. All payments made by, or on behalf of, the Company under or with respect to the Notes, including, but not limited to, payments of principal and interest, will be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by any Relevant Jurisdiction or political subdivision or taxing authority of or in such Relevant Jurisdiction (collectively, "Taxes"), unless such withholding or deduction is required by law or by regulation or governmental policy having the force of law. In the event such withholding or deduction of Taxes is required by law, the Company will pay

to the Holder or beneficial owner of any Note such additional amounts ("Additional Amounts") as may be necessary in order that every net payment by the Company or any paying agent of principal of or interest on the Notes, after deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes, will not be less than the amount provided for in such Note to be then due and payable before deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes; provided that the Company's obligation to pay Additional Amounts shall not apply to:

- (i) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for:
- (A) the existence of any present or former connection between such Holder or beneficial owner (or between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such Holder or beneficial owner, if such Holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity) and any Relevant Jurisdiction, including, without limitation, such Holder or beneficial owner (or such fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member, shareholder or other equity owner or person having such a power) being or having been a citizen or resident or treated as a resident of such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been engaged in a trade or business in such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been present in such Relevant Jurisdiction or having or having had a permanent establishment in such Relevant Jurisdiction;
- (B) the failure of such Holder or beneficial owner to comply with any applicable certification, information, documentation or other reporting requirement concerning the nationality, residence or identity of such Holder or beneficial owner, if compliance is required by statute or by regulation in any Relevant Jurisdiction as a precondition to relief or exemption from the Tax, and proper notice of such requirements has been sent to the Holder or beneficial owner with respect to a jurisdiction other than the United States; or
- (C) such Holder's or beneficial owner's present or former status as a personal holding company, foreign personal holding company, controlled foreign corporation, passive foreign investment company or foreign tax exempt organization with respect to the United States or as a corporation that accumulates earnings to avoid United States federal income tax;
- (ii) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted on interest received by (1) a "10-percent shareholder" of KKR Group Partnership or any Guarantor within the meaning of Section 871(h) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), (2) a controlled foreign corporation that is related to us within the meaning of Section 864(d)(4) of the Code, or (3) a bank receiving interest described in Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Code, to the extent such Taxes

would not have been imposed but for the beneficial owner's status as described in clauses (1) through (3) of this paragraph (ii);

- (iii) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for the presentation by the Holder or beneficial owner of such Note for payment on a date more than 30 days after the date on which such payment became due and payable or the date on which payment of the Note is duly provided for and notice is given to Holders, whichever occurs later, except to the extent that the Holder or beneficial owner would have been entitled to such Additional Amounts on presenting such Note on any date during such 30-day period;
 - (iv) any estate, inheritance, gift, sales, transfer, capital gains, personal property, excise, wealth, interest equalization or similar Taxes;
 - (v) any Taxes which are payable otherwise than by withholding from any payment of principal of or interest on such Note;
- (vi) any Taxes which are payable by a Holder that is not the beneficial owner of the Note, or a portion of the Note, or that is a fiduciary, partnership, limited liability company or other similar entity, but only to the extent that a beneficial owner, a beneficiary or settlor with respect to such fiduciary or member of such partnership, limited liability company or similar entity would not have been entitled to the payment of an Additional Amount had such beneficial owner, settlor, beneficiary or member received directly its beneficial or distributive share of the payment;
- (vii) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted under Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code (or any amended or successor provisions that are substantively comparable) and any current or future regulations or official interpretations thereof ("FATCA"), any agreement (including any intergovernmental agreement) entered into in connection therewith, or any law, regulation or other official guidance enacted in any jurisdiction implementing FATCA or an intergovernmental agreement in respect of FATCA; or
 - (viii) any combination of taxes referred to in the preceding clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v), (vi) and (vii).

For the purposes of this Note, the acquisition, ownership, enforcement or holding of or the receipt of any payment with respect to the Note will not constitute a connection (1) between the holder or beneficial owner and any Relevant Jurisdiction or (2) between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such holder or beneficial owner if such holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity and any Relevant Jurisdiction.

Any reference in this Note to principal or interest shall be deemed to refer also to Additional Amounts which may be payable under the provisions of the Indenture.

4. Optional Redemption. Prior to February 28, 2034 (three months prior to their maturity date) (the "Par Call Date"), the Company may redeem the Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed to, but not including, the redemption date.

The Company shall give the Trustee notice of the Redemption Price with respect to any redemption pursuant to the preceding paragraph as soon as practicable after the calculation thereof and the Trustee shall have no responsibility for such calculation. Any notice of any redemption may, at the Company's discretion, be subject to one or more conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, completion of a securities offering or other corporate transaction.

On or after the Par Call Date, the Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to, but not including, the redemption date.

The Company's actions and determinations in determining the Redemption Price shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

- 5. Tax Redemption. The Company may, at its option, redeem, as a whole, but not in part, this Note at any time prior to maturity on not less than 30 nor more than 60 calendar days' prior notice to the Holders, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount, together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for such redemption if:
- (a) the Company becomes or will become obligated to pay Additional Amounts as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws (or any regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder) of any Relevant Jurisdiction (or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein), or any change in, or amendment to, any official position regarding the application or interpretation of such laws, regulations or rulings, which change or amendment is announced or becomes effective on or after May 23, 2024, with respect to this Note for reasons outside the Company's, or, as the case may be, the Guarantor's, control and after taking reasonable measures available to the Company and the Guarantor to avoid such obligation; or
- (b) on or after May 30, 2024, any action is taken by a taxing authority of, or any action has been brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in, any Relevant Jurisdiction or any political subdivision of or in such Relevant Jurisdiction or any taxing authority thereof or therein, including any of those actions specified in clause (a) above, whether or not such action was taken or brought with respect to the Company, or there is any change, amendment, clarification, application or interpretation of such laws, regulations, treaties or rulings, which in any such case, will result in a material probability that the Company will be required to pay Additional Amounts with respect to this Note (it being understood

that such material probability will be deemed to result if the written opinion of independent tax counsel to such effect is delivered to the Trustee and the Paying Agent).

Prior to the mailing of any notice of redemption pursuant to this section, the Company shall deliver to the Trustee:

- (1) a certificate signed by one of its duly authorized officers stating that the Company is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent to the Company's right so to redeem have occurred, and
- (2) a written opinion of independent legal counsel of recognized standing to the effect that the Company has or will become obligated to pay such Additional Amounts as a result of such change or amendment.

Such notice, once delivered by the Company to the Trustee, shall be irrevocable.

- 6. Change of Control Repurchase Event. In the event of a Change of Control Repurchase Event, unless the Company has exercised its option to redeem the Notes, the Company will make an offer to each Holder of Notes to repurchase all or any part of that Holder's Notes at a Repurchase Price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of Notes repurchased plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, pursuant to Section 6.02 of the Fourth Supplemental Indenture.
- 7. Global Security. If this Note is a Global Security, then, in the event of a deposit or withdrawal of an interest in this Note, including an exchange, transfer, redemption, repurchase or conversion of this Note in part only, the Common Depositary, as custodian of the Depositary, shall make an adjustment on its records to reflect such deposit or withdrawal in accordance with the Applicable Procedures.
- 8. Defaults and Remedies. If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the principal of all the Notes may be declared due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture. Upon payment of the amount of principal so declared due and payable, all obligations of the Company in respect of the payment of the principal of and interest on the Notes shall terminate.

No Holder of Notes shall have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver, assignee, trustee, liquidator or sequestrator (or similar official) or for any other remedy hereunder (except actions for payment of overdue principal of, and premium, if any, or interest on such Notes in accordance with its terms), unless (i) such Holder has previously given written notice to the Trustee of a continuing Event of Default, specifying an Event of Default, as required under the Indenture; (ii) the Holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes shall have made written request to the Trustee to institute proceedings in respect of such Event of Default in its own name as Trustee under the Indenture; (iii) such Holder or Holders have offered to the Trustee indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request; (iv) the Trustee has failed to institute any such

proceeding for 60 days after its receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity; and (v) no direction inconsistent with such written request has been given to the Trustee during such 60-day period by the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes, it being understood and intended that no one or more of such Holders shall have any right in any manner whatever by virtue of, or by availing of, any provision of the Indenture to affect, disturb or prejudice the rights of any other of such Holders, or to obtain or to seek to obtain priority or preference over any other of such Holders or to enforce any right under the Indenture, except in the manner provided in the Indenture and for the equal and ratable benefit of all of such Holders.

The foregoing shall not apply to any suit instituted by the Holder of this Note for the enforcement of any payment of principal of, and premium, if any, or interest hereon, on or after the respective due dates expressed or provided for herein.

9. Amendment, Supplement and Waiver. The Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment thereof and the modification of the rights and obligations of the Company and the rights of the Holders of the Notes under the Indenture at any time by the Company and the Trustee with the written consent of the Holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes. The Indenture also contains provisions permitting the Holders of specified percentages in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes, on behalf of the Holders of all the Notes, to waive compliance by the Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and certain past defaults under the Indenture and their consequences. Any such consent or waiver by the Holder of this Note shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holder and upon all future Holders of this Note and of any Note issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange herefor or in lieu hereof whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon this Note or such other Note. Certain modifications or amendments to the Indenture require the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Note affected.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair (without the consent of the Holder hereof) the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Note at the times, places and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

10. Registration and Transfer. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, the transfer of this Note is registerable on the Security Register. Upon surrender for registration of transfer of this Note at the office or agency of the Company in a Place of Payment, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, at the option of the Holder, this Note may be exchanged for one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount, upon surrender of this Note at such office or agency. Upon such surrender by the Holder, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in the name of the designated

transferee or transferees, one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount. Every Note presented or surrendered for registration of transfer or for exchange shall be duly endorsed (if so required by the Company or the Trustee), or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company and the Security Registrar duly executed, by the Holder thereof or such Holder's attorney duly authorized in writing. No service charge shall be made for any such registration of transfer or exchange, but the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection therewith.

Prior to due presentment of this Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee and any agent of the Company, a Guarantor or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name such Note is registered as the owner thereof for all purposes (except as otherwise provided in the Indenture), whether or not such Note be overdue, and neither the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee nor any agent of the Company, a Guarantor or the Trustee shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

- 11. *Guarantee.* As expressly set forth in the Base Indenture, payment of this Note is jointly and severally and fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Guarantors that have become and continue to be Guarantors pursuant to the Indenture. Guarantors may be released from their obligations under the Indenture and their Guarantees under the circumstances specified in the Base Indenture.
- 12. Governing Law. THE INDENTURE, THIS NOTE AND THE GUARANTEES SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

ABBREVIATIONS

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription of the face of this Note, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM (= tenant in common)

TEN ENT (= tenants by the entireties (Cust))

JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common) UNIF GIFT MIN ACT (= under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.

ASSIGNMENT FORM

To ass	sign this Note,	fill in the form below:
(I) or (we) assi	ign and transfer	this Note to:
		(Insert assignee's legal name)
		(Insert assignee's soc. sec. or tax I.D. no.)
-		(Print or type assignee's name, address and zip code)
and irrevocabl	y appoint	
		, as agent, to transfer this Note on the books of the Company. The agent
may substitute	e another to act	for him.
specified in Ru	ule 144(d) unde	ment of the Notes evidenced by this certificate occurring prior to the date that is one year or six months, as the case may be (as or the Securities Act), after the later of the date of original issuance of such Notes and the last date, if any, on which such Notes or any affiliate of the Company, the undersigned confirms that such Notes are being:
CHECK ONE	BOX BELOW	; :
1		acquired for the undersigned's own account, without transfer; or
2		transferred to the Company; or
3		transferred pursuant to and in compliance with Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"); or
4		transferred pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act; or
5		transferred pursuance to and in compliance with Regulation S promulgated under the Securities Act; or
6		transferred to an institutional "accredited investor" (as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3), or (7) under the Securities Act) that, prior to such

56

7		transferred pursuant to another available exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
than the registere the Notes, in its s is being made pu	d holder the sole discretion	kes is checked, the Trustee will refuse to register any of the Notes evidenced by this certificate in the name of any Person other eof; <i>provided</i> , <i>however</i> , that if box (5), (6) or (7) is checked, the Company may require, prior to registering any such transfer of n, such legal opinions, certifications and other information as the Company may reasonably request to confirm that such transfer exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act, such as the exemption algated under the Securities Act.
Dated:		Signature:
Signature Guarar	ntee:	
(Signature must b	oe guarantee	Signature Signature
membership in ar	n approved s	ald be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution (banks, stockbrokers, savings and loan associations and credit unions with gnature guarantee medallion program), pursuant to Rule 17Ad-15 of the Securities Exchange Act. PURCHASER IF (1) OR (3) ABOVE IS CHECKED.
The undersigned represents and warrants that it is purchasing this Note for its own account or an account with respect to which it exercises sole investment discretion and that it and any such account is a "qualified institutional buyer" within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act, and is aware that the sale to it is being made in reliance on Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act and acknowledges that it has received such information regarding the Company as the undersigned has requested pursuant to Rule 144A or has determined not to request such information and that it is aware that the transferor is relying upon the undersigned's foregoing representations in order to claim the exemption from registration provided by Rule 144A.		
Dated:		Signature:
		57

transfer, furnished the Trustee with a signed letter containing certain representations and agreements relating to the transfer; or

[SCHEDULE OF INCREASES AND DECREASES IN NOTE

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC

2.083% Senior Note due 2034

	Amount of decrease in Principal Amount of this	Amount of increase in Principal Amount of this	Principal Amount of this Note following such decrease or	Signature of authorized officer of
Date	Note	Note Note	increase	Trustee] ³

[FORM OF 2.719% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2044]

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC

2.719% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2044

Principal Amount ¥

No.

CUSIP NO. 48255D AV4 / U4950D AY6
ISIN NO. XS2823257055 / XS2823255356
COMMON CODE NO. 282325705 / 282325535
KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC, a limited liability company duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (herein called the

For the purposes of this Note, the term "Business Day" means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is not a day on which banking institutions or trust companies in the City of New York, the City of London or the City of Tokyo are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close.

The interest so payable, and punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be May 15 or November 15, as applicable, immediately preceding the relevant Interest Payment Date (whether or not a Business Day). Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for will forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date and may either be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice of which shall be given to Holders of Notes not less than 10 days prior to the Special Record Date, or be paid at any time in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which such Notes may be listed, all as more fully provided in the Indenture. Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

The principal of, and premium, if any, and interest and Additional Amounts on, the Notes and the Repurchase Price in connection with a Change of Control Repurchase Event will be payable in Japanese Yen. The Issuer will cause the paying agent to pay such amounts, on the dates payment is to be made, directly to The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited.

The Issuer will pay the Holder hereof Additional Amounts with respect to withholding taxes as are provided for, and subject to the conditions stated, on the reverse of this Note.

This Note is being deposited with The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch acting as a common depositary of Euroclear and Clearstream, and registered in the name of The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited, a nominee of the common depositary. As Holder of record of this Note, The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited shall be entitled to receive payments of principal and interest. Payments of principal and interest, including any Additional Amounts, on this Note shall be made in the manner specified on the reverse of this Note and, to the extent not inconsistent with the provisions set forth herein, in the Indenture referred to herein.

The Notes constitute the direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated general obligations of the Company and shall at all times rank *pari passu* without any preference among themselves and with all other unsecured obligations of the Company, other than subordinated obligations of the Company and except for statutorily preferred obligations. The Notes are not redeemable prior to the Maturity Date, except as set forth on the reverse of this Note and will not be subject to any sinking fund.

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of this Note set forth on the reverse hereof, which further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee referred to on the reverse hereof by manual or electronic signature, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly executed.

KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC

By:

Name: James Rudy Title: Treasurer Attest:

By:

Name: Christopher Lee
Title: Secretary

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This is one of the Securities of the series designated therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.

Dated:	
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Trustee	
By: Authorized Signatory	_
	(2)

[FORM OF REVERSE OF NOTE]

1. Indenture. This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company designated as its "2.719% Senior Notes due 2044" (herein called the "Notes"), issued under a Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 30, 2024 (the "Fourth Supplemental Indenture"), to an indenture, dated as of April 26, 2022 (as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof, the "Base Indenture" and herein with the Fourth Supplemental Indenture, collectively, the "Indenture"), among the Company, the guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee," which term includes any successor trustee under the Indenture), to which reference is hereby made for a statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch (the "Paying Agent," which term includes any successor paying agent under the Indenture) and the Holders of the Notes and of the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. The aggregate principal amount of the Initial 2044 Notes Outstanding at any time may not exceed \$10,000,000,000 in aggregate principal amount, except for, or in lieu of, other Notes of the series pursuant to Sections 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 9.06 or 11.07 of the Base Indenture and except for any Notes which, pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered. The Fourth Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which this Note is issued provides that Additional Notes may be issued thereunder.

All terms used in this Note which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this Note and the Indenture, the provisions of the Indenture shall govern.

- 2. Registrar and Paying Agent. The Company shall maintain in the Borough of Manhattan, the City of New York, an office or agency where Notes may be surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange and an office or agency where Notes may be presented for payment or for exchange. The Company has initially appointed The Bank of New York Mellon acting through its London Branch, as its Paying Agent and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as the Trustee and its Security Registrar. The Company reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent or Security Registrar, to appoint additional or other Paying Agents or other Security Registrars and to approve any change in the office through which any Paying Agent or Security Registrar acts.
- 3. Additional Amounts. All payments made by, or on behalf of, the Company under or with respect to the Notes, including, but not limited to, payments of principal and interest, will be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by any Relevant Jurisdiction or political subdivision or taxing authority of or in such Relevant Jurisdiction (collectively, "Taxes"), unless such withholding or deduction is required by law or by regulation or governmental policy having the force of law. In the event such withholding or deduction of Taxes is required by law, the Company will pay

to the Holder or beneficial owner of any Note such additional amounts ("Additional Amounts") as may be necessary in order that every net payment by the Company or any paying agent of principal of or interest on the Notes, after deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes, will not be less than the amount provided for in such Note to be then due and payable before deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes; provided that the Company's obligation to pay Additional Amounts shall not apply to:

- (i) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for:
- (A) the existence of any present or former connection between such Holder or beneficial owner (or between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such Holder or beneficial owner, if such Holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity) and any Relevant Jurisdiction, including, without limitation, such Holder or beneficial owner (or such fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member, shareholder or other equity owner or person having such a power) being or having been a citizen or resident or treated as a resident of such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been engaged in a trade or business in such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been present in such Relevant Jurisdiction;
- (B) the failure of such Holder or beneficial owner to comply with any applicable certification, information, documentation or other reporting requirement concerning the nationality, residence or identity of such Holder or beneficial owner, if compliance is required by statute or by regulation in any Relevant Jurisdiction as a precondition to relief or exemption from the Tax, and proper notice of such requirements has been sent to the Holder or beneficial owner with respect to a jurisdiction other than the United States; or
- (C) such Holder's or beneficial owner's present or former status as a personal holding company, foreign personal holding company, controlled foreign corporation, passive foreign investment company or foreign tax exempt organization with respect to the United States or as a corporation that accumulates earnings to avoid United States federal income tax;
- (ii) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted on interest received by (1) a "10-percent shareholder" of KKR Group Partnership or any Guarantor within the meaning of Section 871(h) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), (2) a controlled foreign corporation that is related to us within the meaning of Section 864(d)(4) of the Code, or (3) a bank receiving interest described in Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Code, to the extent such Taxes

would not have been imposed but for the beneficial owner's status as described in clauses (1) through (3) of this paragraph (ii);

- (iii) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for the presentation by the Holder or beneficial owner of such Note for payment on a date more than 30 days after the date on which such payment became due and payable or the date on which payment of the Note is duly provided for and notice is given to Holders, whichever occurs later, except to the extent that the Holder or beneficial owner would have been entitled to such Additional Amounts on presenting such Note on any date during such 30-day period;
 - (iv) any estate, inheritance, gift, sales, transfer, capital gains, personal property, excise, wealth, interest equalization or similar Taxes;
 - (v) any Taxes which are payable otherwise than by withholding from any payment of principal of or interest on such Note;
- (vi) any Taxes which are payable by a Holder that is not the beneficial owner of the Note, or a portion of the Note, or that is a fiduciary, partnership, limited liability company or other similar entity, but only to the extent that a beneficial owner, a beneficiary or settlor with respect to such fiduciary or member of such partnership, limited liability company or similar entity would not have been entitled to the payment of an Additional Amount had such beneficial owner, settlor, beneficiary or member received directly its beneficial or distributive share of the payment;
- (vii) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted under Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code (or any amended or successor provisions that are substantively comparable) and any current or future regulations or official interpretations thereof ("FATCA"), any agreement (including any intergovernmental agreement) entered into in connection therewith, or any law, regulation or other official guidance enacted in any jurisdiction implementing FATCA or an intergovernmental agreement in respect of FATCA; or
 - (viii) any combination of taxes referred to in the preceding clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v), (vi) and (vii).

For the purposes of this Note, the acquisition, ownership, enforcement or holding of or the receipt of any payment with respect to the Note will not constitute a connection (1) between the holder or beneficial owner and any Relevant Jurisdiction or (2) between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such holder or beneficial owner if such holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity and any Relevant Jurisdiction.

Any reference in this Note to principal or interest shall be deemed to refer also to Additional Amounts which may be payable under the provisions of the Indenture.

4. Optional Redemption. Prior to November 27, 2043 (six months prior to their maturity date) (the "Par Call Date"), the Company may redeem the Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed to, but not including, the redemption date.

The Company shall give the Trustee notice of the Redemption Price with respect to any redemption pursuant to the preceding paragraph as soon as practicable after the calculation thereof and the Trustee shall have no responsibility for such calculation. Any notice of any redemption may, at the Company's discretion, be subject to one or more conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, completion of a securities offering or other corporate transaction.

On or after the Par Call Date, the Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to, but not including, the redemption date.

The Company's actions and determinations in determining the Redemption Price shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

- 5. Tax Redemption. The Company may, at its option, redeem, as a whole, but not in part, this Note at any time prior to maturity on not less than 30 nor more than 60 calendar days' prior notice to the Holders, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount, together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for such redemption if:
- (a) the Company becomes or will become obligated to pay Additional Amounts as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws (or any regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder) of any Relevant Jurisdiction (or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein), or any change in, or amendment to, any official position regarding the application or interpretation of such laws, regulations or rulings, which change or amendment is announced or becomes effective on or after May 23, 2024, with respect to this Note for reasons outside the Company's, or, as the case may be, the Guarantor's, control and after taking reasonable measures available to the Company and the Guarantor to avoid such obligation; or
- (b) on or after May 30, 2024, any action is taken by a taxing authority of, or any action has been brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in, any Relevant Jurisdiction or any political subdivision of or in such Relevant Jurisdiction or any taxing authority thereof or therein, including any of those actions specified in clause (a) above, whether or not such action was taken or brought with respect to the Company, or there is any change, amendment, clarification, application or interpretation of such laws, regulations, treaties or rulings, which in any such case, will result in a material probability that the Company will be required to pay Additional Amounts with respect to this Note (it being understood

that such material probability will be deemed to result if the written opinion of independent tax counsel to such effect is delivered to the Trustee and the Paying Agent).

Prior to the mailing of any notice of redemption pursuant to this section, the Company shall deliver to the Trustee:

- (1) a certificate signed by one of its duly authorized officers stating that the Company is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent to the Company's right so to redeem have occurred, and
- (2) a written opinion of independent legal counsel of recognized standing to the effect that the Company has or will become obligated to pay such Additional Amounts as a result of such change or amendment.

Such notice, once delivered by the Company to the Trustee, shall be irrevocable.

- 6. Change of Control Repurchase Event. In the event of a Change of Control Repurchase Event, unless the Company has exercised its option to redeem the Notes, the Company will make an offer to each Holder of Notes to repurchase all or any part of that Holder's Notes at a Repurchase Price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of Notes repurchased plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, pursuant to Section 6.02 of the Fourth Supplemental Indenture.
- 7. Global Security. If this Note is a Global Security, then, in the event of a deposit or withdrawal of an interest in this Note, including an exchange, transfer, redemption, repurchase or conversion of this Note in part only, the Common Depositary, as custodian of the Depositary, shall make an adjustment on its records to reflect such deposit or withdrawal in accordance with the Applicable Procedures.
- 8. Defaults and Remedies. If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the principal of all the Notes may be declared due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture. Upon payment of the amount of principal so declared due and payable, all obligations of the Company in respect of the payment of the principal of and interest on the Notes shall terminate.

No Holder of Notes shall have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver, assignee, trustee, liquidator or sequestrator (or similar official) or for any other remedy hereunder (except actions for payment of overdue principal of, and premium, if any, or interest on such Notes in accordance with its terms), unless (i) such Holder has previously given written notice to the Trustee of a continuing Event of Default, specifying an Event of Default, as required under the Indenture; (ii) the Holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes shall have made written request to the Trustee to institute proceedings in respect of such Event of Default in its own name as Trustee under the Indenture; (iii) such Holder or Holders have offered to the Trustee indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request; (iv) the Trustee has failed to institute any such

proceeding for 60 days after its receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity; and (v) no direction inconsistent with such written request has been given to the Trustee during such 60-day period by the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes, it being understood and intended that no one or more of such Holders shall have any right in any manner whatever by virtue of, or by availing of, any provision of the Indenture to affect, disturb or prejudice the rights of any other of such Holders, or to obtain or to seek to obtain priority or preference over any other of such Holders or to enforce any right under the Indenture, except in the manner provided in the Indenture and for the equal and ratable benefit of all of such Holders.

The foregoing shall not apply to any suit instituted by the Holder of this Note for the enforcement of any payment of principal of, and premium, if any, or interest hereon, on or after the respective due dates expressed or provided for herein.

9. Amendment, Supplement and Waiver. The Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment thereof and the modification of the rights and obligations of the Company and the rights of the Holders of the Notes under the Indenture at any time by the Company and the Trustee with the written consent of the Holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes. The Indenture also contains provisions permitting the Holders of specified percentages in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes, on behalf of the Holders of all the Notes, to waive compliance by the Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and certain past defaults under the Indenture and their consequences. Any such consent or waiver by the Holder of this Note shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holder and upon all future Holders of this Note and of any Note issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange herefor or in lieu hereof whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon this Note or such other Note. Certain modifications or amendments to the Indenture require the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Note affected.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair (without the consent of the Holder hereof) the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Note at the times, places and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

10. Registration and Transfer. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, the transfer of this Note is registerable on the Security Register. Upon surrender for registration of transfer of this Note at the office or agency of the Company in a Place of Payment, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, at the option of the Holder, this Note may be exchanged for one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount, upon surrender of this Note at such office or agency. Upon such surrender by the Holder, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in the name of the designated

transferee or transferees, one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount. Every Note presented or surrendered for registration of transfer or for exchange shall be duly endorsed (if so required by the Company or the Trustee), or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company and the Security Registrar duly executed, by the Holder thereof or such Holder's attorney duly authorized in writing. No service charge shall be made for any such registration of transfer or exchange, but the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection therewith.

Prior to due presentment of this Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee and any agent of the Company, a Guarantor or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name such Note is registered as the owner thereof for all purposes (except as otherwise provided in the Indenture), whether or not such Note be overdue, and neither the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee nor any agent of the Company, a Guarantor or the Trustee shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

- 11. *Guarantee.* As expressly set forth in the Base Indenture, payment of this Note is jointly and severally and fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Guarantors that have become and continue to be Guarantors pursuant to the Indenture. Guarantors may be released from their obligations under the Indenture and their Guarantees under the circumstances specified in the Base Indenture.
- 12. Governing Law. THE INDENTURE, THIS NOTE AND THE GUARANTEES SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

ABBREVIATIONS

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription of the face of this Note, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM (= tenant in common)

TEN ENT (= tenants by the entireties (Cust))

JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common) UNIF GIFT MIN ACT (= under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.

ASSIGNMENT FORM

To ass	sign this Note,	fill in the form below:				
(I) or (we) assi	gn and transfe	r this Note to:				
	(Insert assignee's legal name)					
		(Insert assignee's soc. sec. or tax I.D. no.)				
		(Print or type assignee's name, address and zip code)				
and irrevocably	y appoint					
		, as agent, to transfer this Note on the books of the Company. The agent				
may substitute	another to act	for him.				
specified in Ru	le 144(d) unde	ment of the Notes evidenced by this certificate occurring prior to the date that is one year or six months, as the case may be (as er the Securities Act), after the later of the date of original issuance of such Notes and the last date, if any, on which such Notes or any affiliate of the Company, the undersigned confirms that such Notes are being:				
CHECK ONE	BOX BELOW	<i>'</i> :				
1		acquired for the undersigned's own account, without transfer; or				
2		transferred to the Company; or				
3		transferred pursuant to and in compliance with Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"); or				
4		transferred pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act; or				
5		transferred pursuance to and in compliance with Regulation S promulgated under the Securities Act; or				
6		transferred to an institutional "accredited investor" (as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3), or (7) under the Securities Act) that, prior to such				
		70				

7		transferred pursuant to another available exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
than the registere the Notes, in its s is being made pu	ed holder the sole discretion rsuant to an	exes is checked, the Trustee will refuse to register any of the Notes evidenced by this certificate in the name of any Person other reof; <i>provided</i> , <i>however</i> , that if box (5), (6) or (7) is checked, the Company may require, prior to registering any such transfer of on, such legal opinions, certifications and other information as the Company may reasonably request to confirm that such transfer exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act, such as the exemption ulgated under the Securities Act.
Dated:		Signature:
Signature Guarar	ntee:	
(Signature must	oe guarantee	d) Signature
membership in a	n approved s	uld be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution (banks, stockbrokers, savings and loan associations and credit unions with ignature guarantee medallion program), pursuant to Rule 17Ad-15 of the Securities Exchange Act. PURCHASER IF (1) OR (3) ABOVE IS CHECKED.
sole investment Act, and is awar received such in	discretion are that the safermation relations that it is a	epresents and warrants that it is purchasing this Note for its own account or an account with respect to which it exercises nd that it and any such account is a "qualified institutional buyer" within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities ale to it is being made in reliance on Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act and acknowledges that it has regarding the Company as the undersigned has requested pursuant to Rule 144A or has determined not to request such ware that the transferor is relying upon the undersigned's foregoing representations in order to claim the exemption from ale 144A.
Dated:		Signature:
		71

transfer, furnished the Trustee with a signed letter containing certain representations and agreements relating to the transfer; or

[SCHEDULE OF INCREASES AND DECREASES IN NOTE

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC

2.719% Senior Note due 2044

	Amount of decrease in Principal	Amount of increase in Principal	Principal Amount of this Note following	Signature of authorized
Date	Amount of this Note	Amount of this Note	such decrease or increase	officer of Trustee] ⁴

72

[FORM OF 3.008% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2054]

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC

3.008% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2054

No	Principal Amount ¥
CUSIP NO. 48255D AW2 / U4950D AZ3	
ISIN NO. XS2823257568 / XS2823257485	
COMMON CODE NO. 282325756 / 282325748	

KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC, a limited liability company duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (herein called the "Company", which term includes any Successor Person under the Indenture referred to on the reverse hereof), for value received, hereby promises to pay to The Bank of New York Depositary (Nominees) Limited, as nominee of The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch, a common depositary for Euroclear Bank SA/NV ("Euroclear") and Clearstream Banking S.A. ("Clearstream"), or registered assigns, the principal sum of ______ Japanese Yen (\(\frac{\xeta}{\textcolor{

For the purposes of this Note, the term "Business Day" means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is not a day on which banking institutions or trust companies in the City of New York, the City of London or the City of Tokyo are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close.

The interest so payable, and punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be May 15 or November 15, as applicable, immediately preceding the relevant Interest Payment Date (whether or not a Business Day). Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for will forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date and may either be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice of which shall be given to Holders of Notes not less than 10 days prior to the Special Record Date, or be paid at any time in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which such Notes may be listed, all as more fully provided in the Indenture. Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

The principal of, and premium, if any, and interest and Additional Amounts on, the Notes and the Repurchase Price in connection with a Change of Control Repurchase Event will be payable in Japanese Yen. The Issuer will cause the paying agent to pay such amounts, on the dates payment is to be made, directly to The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited.

The Issuer will pay the Holder hereof Additional Amounts with respect to withholding taxes as are provided for, and subject to the conditions stated, on the reverse of this Note.

This Note is being deposited with The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch acting as a common depositary of Euroclear and Clearstream, and registered in the name of The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited, a nominee of the common depositary. As Holder of record of this Note, The Bank of New York Depository (Nominees) Limited shall be entitled to receive payments of principal and interest. Payments of principal and interest, including any Additional Amounts, on this Note shall be made in the manner specified on the reverse of this Note and, to the extent not inconsistent with the provisions set forth herein, in the Indenture referred to herein.

The Notes constitute the direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated general obligations of the Company and shall at all times rank *pari passu* without any preference among themselves and with all other unsecured obligations of the Company, other than subordinated obligations of the Company and except for statutorily preferred obligations. The Notes are not redeemable prior to the Maturity Date, except as set forth on the reverse of this Note and will not be subject to any sinking fund.

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of this Note set forth on the reverse hereof, which further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee referred to on the reverse hereof by manual or electronic signature, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly executed.

KKR Group Finance Co. XI LLC

By:

Name: James Rudy Title: Treasurer Attest:

By:

Name: Christopher Lee

Title: Secretary

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This is one of the Securities of the series designated therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.

Dated:			
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Trustee			
By:			
Authorized Signatory			
	7.0		

[FORM OF REVERSE OF NOTE]

1. Indenture. This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of securities of the Company designated as its "3.008% Senior Notes due 2054" (herein called the "Notes"), issued under a Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 30, 2024 (the "Fourth Supplemental Indenture"), to an indenture, dated as of April 26, 2022 (as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof, the "Base Indenture" and herein with the Fourth Supplemental Indenture, collectively, the "Indenture"), among the Company, the guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee," which term includes any successor trustee under the Indenture), to which reference is hereby made for a statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch (the "Paying Agent," which term includes any successor paying agent under the Indenture) and the Holders of the Notes and of the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. The aggregate principal amount of the Initial 2054 Notes Outstanding at any time may not exceed \(\frac{4}{9}\),600,000,000 in aggregate principal amount, except for, or in lieu of, other Notes of the series pursuant to Sections 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 9.06 or 11.07 of the Base Indenture and except for any Notes which, pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered. The Fourth Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which this Note is issued provides that Additional Notes may be issued thereunder.

All terms used in this Note which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this Note and the Indenture, the provisions of the Indenture shall govern.

- 2. Registrar and Paying Agent. The Company shall maintain in the Borough of Manhattan, the City of New York, an office or agency where Notes may be surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange and an office or agency where Notes may be presented for payment or for exchange. The Company has initially appointed The Bank of New York Mellon acting through its London Branch, as its Paying Agent and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as the Trustee and its Security Registrar. The Company reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent or Security Registrar, to appoint additional or other Paying Agents or other Security Registrars and to approve any change in the office through which any Paying Agent or Security Registrar acts.
- 3. Additional Amounts. All payments made by, or on behalf of, the Company under or with respect to the Notes, including, but not limited to, payments of principal and interest, will be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by any Relevant Jurisdiction or political subdivision or taxing authority of or in such Relevant Jurisdiction (collectively, "Taxes"), unless such withholding or deduction is required by law or by regulation or governmental policy having the force of law. In the event such withholding or deduction of Taxes is required by law, the Company will pay

to the Holder or beneficial owner of any Note such additional amounts ("Additional Amounts") as may be necessary in order that every net payment by the Company or any paying agent of principal of or interest on the Notes, after deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes, will not be less than the amount provided for in such Note to be then due and payable before deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes; provided that the Company's obligation to pay Additional Amounts shall not apply to:

- (ix) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for:
- (A) the existence of any present or former connection between such Holder or beneficial owner (or between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such Holder or beneficial owner, if such Holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity) and any Relevant Jurisdiction, including, without limitation, such Holder or beneficial owner (or such fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member, shareholder or other equity owner or person having such a power) being or having been a citizen or resident or treated as a resident of such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been engaged in a trade or business in such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been present in such Relevant Jurisdiction or having or having had a permanent establishment in such Relevant Jurisdiction;
- (B) the failure of such Holder or beneficial owner to comply with any applicable certification, information, documentation or other reporting requirement concerning the nationality, residence or identity of such Holder or beneficial owner, if compliance is required by statute or by regulation in any Relevant Jurisdiction as a precondition to relief or exemption from the Tax, and proper notice of such requirements has been sent to the Holder or beneficial owner with respect to a jurisdiction other than the United States; or
- (C) such Holder's or beneficial owner's present or former status as a personal holding company, foreign personal holding company, controlled foreign corporation, passive foreign investment company or foreign tax exempt organization with respect to the United States or as a corporation that accumulates earnings to avoid United States federal income tax;
- (x) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted on interest received by (1) a "10-percent shareholder" of KKR Group Partnership or any Guarantor within the meaning of Section 871(h) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), (2) a controlled foreign corporation that is related to us within the meaning of Section 864(d)(4) of the Code, or (3) a bank receiving interest described in Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Code, to the extent such Taxes

would not have been imposed but for the beneficial owner's status as described in clauses (1) through (3) of this paragraph (ii);

- (xi) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for the presentation by the Holder or beneficial owner of such Note for payment on a date more than 30 days after the date on which such payment became due and payable or the date on which payment of the Note is duly provided for and notice is given to Holders, whichever occurs later, except to the extent that the Holder or beneficial owner would have been entitled to such Additional Amounts on presenting such Note on any date during such 30-day period;
 - (xii) any estate, inheritance, gift, sales, transfer, capital gains, personal property, excise, wealth, interest equalization or similar Taxes;
 - (xiii) any Taxes which are payable otherwise than by withholding from any payment of principal of or interest on such Note;
- (xiv) any Taxes which are payable by a Holder that is not the beneficial owner of the Note, or a portion of the Note, or that is a fiduciary, partnership, limited liability company or other similar entity, but only to the extent that a beneficial owner, a beneficiary or settlor with respect to such fiduciary or member of such partnership, limited liability company or similar entity would not have been entitled to the payment of an Additional Amount had such beneficial owner, settlor, beneficiary or member received directly its beneficial or distributive share of the payment;
- (xv) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted under Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code (or any amended or successor provisions that are substantively comparable) and any current or future regulations or official interpretations thereof ("FATCA"), any agreement (including any intergovernmental agreement) entered into in connection therewith, or any law, regulation or other official guidance enacted in any jurisdiction implementing FATCA or an intergovernmental agreement in respect of FATCA; or
 - (xvi) any combination of taxes referred to in the preceding clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v), (vi) and (vii).

For the purposes of this Note, the acquisition, ownership, enforcement or holding of or the receipt of any payment with respect to the Note will not constitute a connection (1) between the holder or beneficial owner and any Relevant Jurisdiction or (2) between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such holder or beneficial owner if such holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity and any Relevant Jurisdiction.

Any reference in this Note to principal or interest shall be deemed to refer also to Additional Amounts which may be payable under the provisions of the Indenture.

4. Optional Redemption. Prior to November 29, 2053 (six months prior to their maturity date) (the "Par Call Date"), the Company may redeem the Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed to, but not including, the redemption date.

The Company shall give the Trustee notice of the Redemption Price with respect to any redemption pursuant to the preceding paragraph as soon as practicable after the calculation thereof and the Trustee shall have no responsibility for such calculation. Any notice of any redemption may, at the Company's discretion, be subject to one or more conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, completion of a securities offering or other corporate transaction.

On or after the Par Call Date, the Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to, but not including, the redemption date.

The Company's actions and determinations in determining the Redemption Price shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

- 5. Tax Redemption. The Company may, at its option, redeem, as a whole, but not in part, this Note at any time prior to maturity on not less than 30 nor more than 60 calendar days' prior notice to the Holders, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount, together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for such redemption if:
- (a) the Company becomes or will become obligated to pay Additional Amounts as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws (or any regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder) of any Relevant Jurisdiction (or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein), or any change in, or amendment to, any official position regarding the application or interpretation of such laws, regulations or rulings, which change or amendment is announced or becomes effective on or after May 23, 2024, with respect to this Note for reasons outside the Company's, or, as the case may be, the Guarantor's, control and after taking reasonable measures available to the Company and the Guarantor to avoid such obligation; or
- (b) on or after May 30, 2024, any action is taken by a taxing authority of, or any action has been brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in, any Relevant Jurisdiction or any political subdivision of or in such Relevant Jurisdiction or any taxing authority thereof or therein, including any of those actions specified in clause (a) above, whether or not such action was taken or brought with respect to the Company, or there is any change, amendment, clarification, application or interpretation of such laws, regulations, treaties or rulings, which in any such case, will result in a material probability that the Company will be required to pay Additional Amounts with respect to this Note (it being understood

that such material probability will be deemed to result if the written opinion of independent tax counsel to such effect is delivered to the Trustee and the Paying Agent).

Prior to the mailing of any notice of redemption pursuant to this section, the Company shall deliver to the Trustee:

- (1) a certificate signed by one of its duly authorized officers stating that the Company is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent to the Company's right so to redeem have occurred, and
- (2) a written opinion of independent legal counsel of recognized standing to the effect that the Company has or will become obligated to pay such Additional Amounts as a result of such change or amendment.

Such notice, once delivered by the Company to the Trustee, shall be irrevocable.

- 6. Change of Control Repurchase Event. In the event of a Change of Control Repurchase Event, unless the Company has exercised its option to redeem the Notes, the Company will make an offer to each Holder of Notes to repurchase all or any part of that Holder's Notes at a Repurchase Price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of Notes repurchased plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, pursuant to Section 6.02 of the Fourth Supplemental Indenture.
- 7. Global Security. If this Note is a Global Security, then, in the event of a deposit or withdrawal of an interest in this Note, including an exchange, transfer, redemption, repurchase or conversion of this Note in part only, the Common Depositary, as custodian of the Depositary, shall make an adjustment on its records to reflect such deposit or withdrawal in accordance with the Applicable Procedures.
- 8. Defaults and Remedies. If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the principal of all the Notes may be declared due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture. Upon payment of the amount of principal so declared due and payable, all obligations of the Company in respect of the payment of the principal of and interest on the Notes shall terminate.

No Holder of Notes shall have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver, assignee, trustee, liquidator or sequestrator (or similar official) or for any other remedy hereunder (except actions for payment of overdue principal of, and premium, if any, or interest on such Notes in accordance with its terms), unless (i) such Holder has previously given written notice to the Trustee of a continuing Event of Default, specifying an Event of Default, as required under the Indenture; (ii) the Holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes shall have made written request to the Trustee to institute proceedings in respect of such Event of Default in its own name as Trustee under the Indenture; (iii) such Holder or Holders have offered to the Trustee indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request; (iv) the Trustee has failed to institute any such

proceeding for 60 days after its receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity; and (v) no direction inconsistent with such written request has been given to the Trustee during such 60-day period by the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes, it being understood and intended that no one or more of such Holders shall have any right in any manner whatever by virtue of, or by availing of, any provision of the Indenture to affect, disturb or prejudice the rights of any other of such Holders, or to obtain or to seek to obtain priority or preference over any other of such Holders or to enforce any right under the Indenture, except in the manner provided in the Indenture and for the equal and ratable benefit of all of such Holders.

The foregoing shall not apply to any suit instituted by the Holder of this Note for the enforcement of any payment of principal of, and premium, if any, or interest hereon, on or after the respective due dates expressed or provided for herein.

9. Amendment, Supplement and Waiver. The Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment thereof and the modification of the rights and obligations of the Company and the rights of the Holders of the Notes under the Indenture at any time by the Company and the Trustee with the written consent of the Holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes. The Indenture also contains provisions permitting the Holders of specified percentages in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes, on behalf of the Holders of all the Notes, to waive compliance by the Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and certain past defaults under the Indenture and their consequences. Any such consent or waiver by the Holder of this Note shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holder and upon all future Holders of this Note and of any Note issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange herefor or in lieu hereof whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon this Note or such other Note. Certain modifications or amendments to the Indenture require the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Note affected.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair (without the consent of the Holder hereof) the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Note at the times, places and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

10. Registration and Transfer. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, the transfer of this Note is registerable on the Security Register. Upon surrender for registration of transfer of this Note at the office or agency of the Company in a Place of Payment, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, at the option of the Holder, this Note may be exchanged for one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount, upon surrender of this Note at such office or agency. Upon such surrender by the Holder, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in the name of the designated

transferee or transferees, one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of like tenor and principal amount. Every Note presented or surrendered for registration of transfer or for exchange shall be duly endorsed (if so required by the Company or the Trustee), or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company and the Security Registrar duly executed, by the Holder thereof or such Holder's attorney duly authorized in writing. No service charge shall be made for any such registration of transfer or exchange, but the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection therewith.

Prior to due presentment of this Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee and any agent of the Company, a Guarantor or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name such Note is registered as the owner thereof for all purposes (except as otherwise provided in the Indenture), whether or not such Note be overdue, and neither the Company, the Guarantors, the Trustee nor any agent of the Company, a Guarantor or the Trustee shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

- 11. *Guarantee*. As expressly set forth in the Base Indenture, payment of this Note is jointly and severally and fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Guarantors that have become and continue to be Guarantors pursuant to the Indenture. Guarantors may be released from their obligations under the Indenture and their Guarantees under the circumstances specified in the Base Indenture.
- 12. Governing Law. THE INDENTURE, THIS NOTE AND THE GUARANTEES SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

ABBREVIATIONS

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription of the face of this Note, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM (= tenant in common)

TEN ENT (= tenants by the entireties (Cust))

JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common) UNIF GIFT MIN ACT (= under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.

ASSIGNMENT FORM

To ass	sign this Note, fi	ll in the form below:
(I) or (we) assi	gn and transfer t	his Note to:
		(Insert assignee's legal name)
		(Insert assignee's soc. sec. or tax I.D. no.)
		(Print or type assignee's name, address and zip code)
and irrevocably	y appoint	
		, as agent, to transfer this Note on the books of the Company. The agent
may substitute	another to act for	or him.
specified in Ru	ıle 144(d) under	then the Notes evidenced by this certificate occurring prior to the date that is one year or six months, as the case may be (as the Securities Act), after the later of the date of original issuance of such Notes and the last date, if any, on which such Notes or any affiliate of the Company, the undersigned confirms that such Notes are being:
CHECK ONE	BOX BELOW:	
1		acquired for the undersigned's own account, without transfer; or
2		transferred to the Company; or
3		transferred pursuant to and in compliance with Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"); or
4		transferred pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act; or
5		transferred pursuance to and in compliance with Regulation S promulgated under the Securities Act; or
6		transferred to an institutional "accredited investor" (as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3), or (7) under the Securities Act) that, prior to such
		84

7		transferred pursuant to another available exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.				
than the registere the Notes, in its s is being made pu	ed holder ther sole discretion rsuant to an o	xes is checked, the Trustee will refuse to register any of the Notes evidenced by this certificate in the name of any Person other reof; <i>provided</i> , <i>however</i> , that if box (5), (6) or (7) is checked, the Company may require, prior to registering any such transfer of n, such legal opinions, certifications and other information as the Company may reasonably request to confirm that such transfer exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act, such as the exemption algated under the Securities Act.				
Dated:		Signature:				
Signature Guarai	ntee:					
(Signature must	be guaranteed	Signature				
TO BE COMPI The unsole investment Act, and is awaireceived such in	n approved since the control of the	Signature:				
		85				

transfer, furnished the Trustee with a signed letter containing certain representations and agreements relating to the transfer; or

[SCHEDULE OF INCREASES AND DECREASES IN NOTE

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC

3.008% Senior Note due 2054

Date	Amount of decrease in Principal Amount of this Note	Amount of increase in Principal Amount of this Note	Principal Amount of this Note following such decrease or increase	Signature of authorized officer of Trustee] ⁵
⁵ Insert for Global S	Securities only			

- Section 3.03. Transfer and Exchange of Global Securities. (a) The transfer and exchange of Global Securities or beneficial interests therein shall be effected through the Depositary, in accordance with the Indenture (including applicable restrictions on transfer set forth in the Indenture and in the Global Security) and the procedures of the Depositary therefor. A transferor of a beneficial interest in a Global Security to another Global Security shall deliver to the Security Registrar a duly completed Assignment Form in the form attached to the Global Security, any applicable certifications or opinions required by the Assignment Form and a written order given in accordance with the Applicable Procedures containing information regarding the participant account of the Depositary to be credited with a beneficial interest in the Global Security. The Security Registrar shall, in accordance with such instructions, instruct the Depositary to credit to the account of the Person specified in such instructions a beneficial interest in the Global Security and to debit the account of the Person making the transfer the beneficial interest in the Global Security being transferred.
- (b) If the proposed transfer is a transfer of a beneficial interest in one Global Security to a beneficial interest in another Global Security, the Security Registrar shall reflect on its books and records the date and an increase in the principal amount of the Global Security to which such interest is being transferred in an amount equal to the principal amount of the interest to be so transferred, and the Security Registrar shall reflect on its books and records the date and a corresponding decrease in the principal amount of the Global Security from which such interest is being transferred.
- (c) If the Company determines (upon the advice of counsel and such other certifications and evidence as the Company may reasonably require) that a Note is eligible for resale after the applicable Resale Restriction Termination Date (as defined in the applicable Note) pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act (or a successor provision) without the need for current public information and that the applicable legend in either the first or second paragraph of Section 3.02 hereto (a "Restricted Legend") is no longer necessary or appropriate in order to ensure that subsequent transfers of the Note (or a beneficial interest therein) are effected in compliance with the Securities Act, the Company may instruct the Trustee to cancel the Note and issue to the Holder thereof (or to its transferee) a new Note in any authorized denominations of like tenor and aggregate principal amount, registered in the name of the Holder thereof (or its transferee), that does not bear the Restricted Legend, and the Trustee will comply with such instruction.

ARTICLE 4 Remedies

- Section 4.01. Events of Default. "Event of Default" means, wherever used herein with respect to the Notes, any one of the following events (whatever the reason for such Event of Default and whether it shall be voluntary or involuntary or be effected by operation of law or pursuant to any judgment, decree or order of any court or any order, rule or regulation of any administrative or governmental body):
 - (a) an Event of Default pursuant to Section 5.01 of the Base Indenture; or

- (b) the Company's failure to pay the Repurchase Price when due in connection with a Change of Control Repurchase Event.
- Section 4.02. Waiver of Past Defaults. Section 5.12 of the Base Indenture shall not apply to the Notes, and, with respect to the Notes, any reference to Section 5.12 in the Base Indenture shall instead be deemed to refer to this Section 4.02.

The Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes may on behalf of the Holders of all the Notes waive any past Default hereunder with respect to the Notes and its consequences, except a default:

- (a) in the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any), interest on, or Additional Amounts with respect to any Note, or the Repurchase Price in connection with a Change of Control Repurchase Event; or
- (b) in respect of a covenant or provision hereof or of the Base Indenture which under Article 8 hereof or under Article 9 of the Base Indenture cannot be modified or amended without the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Note affected, *provided* that there had been paid or deposited with the Paying Agent a sum sufficient to pay all amounts due to the Paying Agent and to reimburse the Paying Agent for any and all fees, expenses and disbursements advanced by the Paying Agent, its agents and its counsel incurred in connection with such default or Event of Default.

Upon any such waiver, such Default shall cease to exist, and any Event of Default arising therefrom shall be deemed to have been cured, for every purpose of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture, but no such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other Default or impair any right consequent thereon.

ARTICLE 5 REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Section 5.01. Optional Redemption

- (a) Prior to March 30, 2031 (two months prior to their maturity date) (the "2031 Notes Par Call Date"), the Company may redeem the 2031 Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2031 Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount of the 2031 Notes being redeemed to, but not including, the redemption date.
- (b) Prior to February 28, 2034 (three months prior to their maturity date) (the "2034 Notes Par Call Date"), the Company may redeem the 2034 Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2034 Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid

interest on the principal amount of the 2034 Notes being redeemed to, but not including, the redemption date.

- (c) Prior to November 27, 2043 (six months prior to their maturity date) (the "2044 Notes Par Call Date"), the Company may redeem the 2044 Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2044 Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount of the 2044 Notes being redeemed to, but not including, the redemption date.
- (d) Prior to November 29, 2053 (six months prior to their maturity date) (the "2054 Notes Par Call Date"), the Company may redeem the 2054 Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount and rounded to three decimal places) equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2054 Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount of the 2054 Notes being redeemed to, but not including, the redemption date.
- (e) The Company shall give the Trustee notice of the Redemption Price with respect to any redemption pursuant to the preceding paragraphs in this Section 5.01 as soon as practicable after the calculation thereof and the Trustee shall have no responsibility for such calculation. Any notice of any redemption may, at the Company's discretion, be subject to one or more conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, completion of a securities offering or other corporate transaction.
- (f) On or after the Applicable Par Call Date, the Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount of such Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to, but not including, the redemption date.
- (g) The Company's actions and determinations in determining the Redemption Price shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.
- (h) Notice of any redemption shall be mailed or electronically delivered (or otherwise transmitted in accordance with the Applicable Procedures) at least 10 days but not more than 60 days before the Redemption Date to each Holder of the series of Notes to be redeemed.
 - (i) In the case of a partial redemption, selection of the Notes of the applicable series for redemption shall be made by lot.

Section 5.02. Tax Redemption.

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Company, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed, together with any interest accrued and unpaid on the Notes to be redeemed to,

but excluding, the date fixed for redemption, at any time, on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' notice if:

- the Company has or will become obligated to pay Additional Amounts as a result of any change in or amendment to the laws, regulations or rulings of such Relevant Jurisdiction or any political subdivision or any taxing authority of or in any Relevant Jurisdiction affecting taxation, or any change in or amendment to an official application or interpretation of such laws, regulations or rulings, which change or amendment is announced or becomes effective on or after May 23, 2024 (or, if the Relevant Jurisdiction became a Relevant Jurisdiction on a date after May 23, 2024, such later date); provided such obligation to pay Additional Amounts cannot be avoided by the Company or, as the case may be, the Guarantor taking reasonable measures available to it; or
- any action shall have been taken by a taxing authority, or any action has been brought in a court of competent jurisdiction, in any Relevant Jurisdiction or any political subdivision or taxing authority of or in any Relevant Jurisdiction, including any of those actions specified in (a) above, whether or not such action was taken or brought with respect to the Company, or any change, amendment, clarification, application or interpretation of such laws, regulations, treaties or rulings shall be officially proposed, in any such case on or after May 30, 2024 (or, if the Relevant Jurisdiction became a Relevant Jurisdiction on a date after May 30, 2024, such later date), which results in a material probability that the Company will be required to pay Additional Amounts on the next interest payment date (it being understood that such material probability will be deemed to result if the written opinion of independent tax counsel to such effect is delivered to the Trustee and the Paying Agent).

However, no such notice of redemption shall be given earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date on which the Company would be, in the case of a redemption for the reasons specified in (1) above, or there would be a material probability that the Company would be, in the case of a redemption for the reasons specified in (2) above, obligated to pay such Additional Amounts if a payment in respect of the Notes were then due and at the time such notification of redemption is given such circumstance remains in effect.

Prior to the mailing of any notice of redemption pursuant to this Section 5.02, the Company shall deliver to the Trustee:

(1) a certificate signed by one of its duly authorized officers stating that the Company is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a

statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent to the Company's right so to redeem have occurred, and

(2) a written opinion of independent legal counsel of recognized standing to the effect that the Company has or will become obligated to pay such Additional Amounts as a result of such change or amendment.

Such notice, once delivered by the Company to the Trustee, shall be irrevocable.

ARTICLE 6 PARTICULAR COVENANTS

Section 6.01. Liens. The Credit Parties shall not create, assume, incur or guarantee any indebtedness for money borrowed that is secured by a pledge, mortgage, lien or other encumbrance (other than Permitted Liens) on any voting stock or profit participating equity interests of their respective Subsidiaries (to the extent of their ownership of such voting stock or profit participating equity interests) or any entity that succeeds (whether by merger, consolidation, sale of assets or otherwise) to all or any substantial part of the business of any of such Subsidiaries, without providing that the Notes (together with, if the Credit Parties shall so determine, any other indebtedness of, or guarantee by, the Credit Parties ranking equally with the Notes and existing as of the closing of the offering of the Notes or thereafter created) will be secured equally and ratably with or prior to all other indebtedness secured by such pledge, mortgage, lien or other encumbrance on the voting stock or profit participating equity interests of any such entities. This Section 6.01 shall not limit the ability of the Credit Parties to incur indebtedness or other obligations secured by liens on assets other than the voting stock or profit participating equity interests of their respective Subsidiaries.

- Section 6.02. Obligation to Offer to Repurchase Upon a Change of Control Repurchase Event. (a) If a Change of Control Repurchase Event occurs, unless the Company has exercised its option to redeem the Notes pursuant to Article 5 of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture by giving notice of such redemption to the Holders of the Notes pursuant to Section 11.04 of the Base Indenture, the Company will make an offer to each Holder of Notes to repurchase all or any part of that Holder's Notes (the "Change of Control Offer") at a repurchase price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of Notes repurchased plus any accrued and unpaid interest on the Notes repurchased to, but excluding, the date of purchase (the "Repurchase Price").
- (b) In connection with any Change of Control related to a Change of Control Repurchase Event and any particular reduction in the ratings on the Notes, the Company shall request from the Rating Agencies each such Rating Agency's written confirmation that such reduction in the ratings on the Notes was the result, in whole or in part, of any event or circumstance comprised of or arising as a result of, or in respect of, the applicable Change of Control (whether or not the applicable Change of Control shall have occurred at the time of any Below Investment Grade Rating Event). The Company shall promptly certify to the Trustee as to whether or not such confirmation has been received or denied.

- (c) Within 30 days following any Change of Control Repurchase Event or, at the Company's option, prior to any Change of Control, but after the public announcement of the Change of Control, the Company will give notice to each Holder of Notes, with a written copy to the Trustee, describing the transaction or transactions that constitute or may constitute the Change of Control Repurchase Event and offering to repurchase Notes on the payment date specified in the notice, which date will be no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days from the date such notice is given (the "Repurchase Price Payment Date"). The notice shall, if given prior to the date of consummation of the Change of Control, state that the offer to purchase is conditioned on the Change of Control Repurchase Event occurring on or prior to the payment date specified in the notice. The Company will comply with the requirements of Rule 14e-1 under the Exchange Act, and any other securities laws and regulations thereunder to the extent those laws and regulations are applicable in connection with the repurchase of the Notes as a result of a Change of Control Repurchase Event. To the extent that the provisions of any securities laws or regulations conflict with the Change of Control Repurchase Event provisions of the Notes by virtue of such conflict.
 - (d) On the Change of Control Repurchase Event payment date, the Company will, to the extent lawful:
 - (i) accept for payment all Notes or portions of Notes properly tendered pursuant to the Change of Control Offer;
 - (ii) deposit with the Paying Agent an amount equal to the Repurchase Price in respect of all Notes or portions of Notes properly tendered; and
 - (iii) deliver or cause to be delivered to the Trustee the Notes properly accepted, together with an officers' certificate stating the aggregate principal amount of Notes being purchased by the Company.

The Paying Agent will promptly mail to each Holder of Notes properly tendered the Repurchase Price for the Notes, and the Trustee will promptly authenticate and mail (or cause to be transferred by book-entry) to each Holder a new Note equal in principal amount to any unpurchased portion of any Notes surrendered; provided that each new Note representing any unpurchased portion of any Notes surrendered will be in a principal amount of \$100,000,000 and integral multiples of \$10,000,000 in excess thereof.

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company will not be required to make an offer to repurchase the Notes upon a Change of Control Repurchase Event if (i) a third party makes an offer in respect of the Notes in the manner, at the times and otherwise in compliance with the requirements for an offer made by the Company and such third party purchases all Notes properly tendered and not withdrawn under its offer or (ii) the Company has given written notice of a redemption as provided under Section 11.04 of

the Base Indenture; provided that the Company has not failed to pay the Redemption Price on the redemption date.

Section 6.03. *Financial Reports*. Section 7.04 of the Base Indenture shall apply to the reports, information, and documents delivered under this Section 6.03.

- (a) For so long as the Corporation is subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the Company shall provide (or cause its Affiliates to provide) to the Trustee, unless available on the Commission's Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis and Retrieval System (or successor system) ("EDGAR"), within 15 days after the Corporation files the same with the Commission, copies of the annual reports and of the information, documents and other reports (or copies of such portions of any of the foregoing as the Commission may from time to time by rules and regulations prescribe) which the Corporation may file with the Commission pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act. The Trustee may conclusively presume, and shall incur no liability in such presumption, that the Corporation has not filed any such reports, information, documents and other reports with the Commission that are not available on EDGAR unless and until it shall have received written notice from the Company to the contrary.
- (b) For so long as any of the Notes remain Outstanding, the Company shall, or shall cause its Affiliates to, furnish to the Holders of the Notes and prospective investors, upon their request, the information required to be delivered pursuant to Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act for the Company and, unless available on EDGAR, for the Corporation (as if such rule applied to it); *provided*, *however*, that if any time the Corporation no longer directly or indirectly controls the Credit Parties or guarantees the Notes, such information shall be provided for either (i) the Credit Parties on a combined and consolidated basis and taken as a whole or (ii) any Person that directly or indirectly controls the Credit Parties and guarantees the Notes (in each case, as if such rule applied to such Persons). The Company shall, or shall cause its Affiliates to, make the above information and reports available to securities analysts and prospective investors upon request.
- (c) Delivery of such reports, information and documents to the Trustee shall be for informational purposes only and the Trustee's receipt of such shall not constitute constructive notice of any information contained therein or determinable from information contained therein, including the Company's compliance with any of the covenants contained in the Indenture (as to which the Trustee will be entitled to conclusively rely upon an Officer's Certificate). The Trustee shall have no obligation to determine if and when the Company's information is available on EDGAR and the Trustee shall have no obligation to obtain any reports that are posted on EDGAR.

Section 6.04. Additional Amounts.

(a) All payments made by, or on behalf of, the Company under or with respect to the Notes, including, but not limited to, payments of principal and interest, shall be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any

present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by any Relevant Jurisdiction or political subdivision or taxing authority of or in such Relevant Jurisdiction (collectively, "Taxes"), unless such withholding or deduction is required by law or by regulation or governmental policy having the force of law. In the event such withholding or deduction of Taxes is required by law, the Company will pay to the Holder or beneficial owner of any Note such additional amounts ("Additional Amounts") as may be necessary in order that every net payment by the Company or any paying agent of principal of or interest on the Notes, after deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes, will not be less than the amount provided for in such Note to be then due and payable before deduction or withholding for or on account of such Taxes; provided that the Company's obligation to pay Additional Amounts shall not apply to:

- (i) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for:
- (A) the existence of any present or former connection between such Holder or beneficial owner (or between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such Holder or beneficial owner, if such Holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity) and any Relevant Jurisdiction, including, without limitation, such Holder or beneficial owner (or such fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member, shareholder or other equity owner or person having such a power) being or having been a citizen or resident or treated as a resident of such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been engaged in a trade or business in such Relevant Jurisdiction or being or having been present in such Relevant Jurisdiction;
- (B) the failure of such Holder or beneficial owner to comply with any applicable certification, information, documentation or other reporting requirement concerning the nationality, residence or identity of such Holder or beneficial owner, if compliance is required by statute or by regulation in any Relevant Jurisdiction as a precondition to relief or exemption from the Tax, and proper notice of such requirements has been sent to the Holder or beneficial owner with respect to a jurisdiction other than the United States; or
- (C) such Holder's or beneficial owner's present or former status as a personal holding company, foreign personal holding company, controlled foreign corporation, passive foreign investment company or foreign tax exempt organization with respect to the United States or as a corporation that accumulates earnings to avoid United States federal income tax;

- (ii) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted on interest received by (1) a "10-percent shareholder" of KKR Group Partnership or any Guarantor within the meaning of Section 871(h) of the Code, (2) a controlled foreign corporation that is related to us within the meaning of Section 864(d)(4) of the Code, or (3) a bank receiving interest described in Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Code, to the extent such Taxes would not have been imposed but for the beneficial owner's status as described in clauses (1) through (3) of this paragraph (ii);
- (iii) any Taxes which would not have been so imposed, withheld or deducted but for the presentation by the Holder or beneficial owner of such Note for payment on a date more than 30 days after the date on which such payment became due and payable or the date on which payment of the Note is duly provided for and notice is given to Holders, whichever occurs later, except to the extent that the Holder or beneficial owner would have been entitled to such Additional Amounts on presenting such Note on any date during such 30-day period;
 - (iv) any estate, inheritance, gift, sales, transfer, capital gains, personal property, excise, wealth, interest equalization or similar Taxes;
 - (v) any Taxes which are payable otherwise than by withholding from any payment of principal of or interest on such Note;
- (vi) any Taxes which are payable by a Holder that is not the beneficial owner of the Note, or a portion of the Note, or that is a fiduciary, partnership, limited liability company or other similar entity, but only to the extent that a beneficial owner, a beneficiary or settlor with respect to such fiduciary or member of such partnership, limited liability company or similar entity would not have been entitled to the payment of an Additional Amount had such beneficial owner, settlor, beneficiary or member received directly its beneficial or distributive share of the payment;
- (vii) any Taxes imposed, withheld or deducted under Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code (or any amended or successor provisions that are substantively comparable) and any current or future regulations or official interpretations thereof ("FATCA"), any agreement (including any intergovernmental agreement) entered into in connection therewith, or any law, regulation or other official guidance enacted in any jurisdiction implementing FATCA or an intergovernmental agreement in respect of FATCA; or
 - (viii) any combination of taxes referred to in the preceding clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v), (vi) and (vii).

For purposes of this Section 6.04, the acquisition, ownership, enforcement or holding of or the receipt of any payment with respect to a Note will not constitute a connection (1) between the Holder or beneficial owner and any Relevant Jurisdiction or

(2) between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member or shareholder or other equity owner of, or a person having a power over, such Holder or beneficial owner if such Holder or beneficial owner is an estate, a trust, a limited liability company, a partnership, a corporation or other entity and any Relevant Jurisdiction.

Any reference in this Indenture or in the Notes to principal or interest shall be deemed to refer also to Additional Amounts which may be payable under the provisions of this Section 6.04.

ARTICLE 7 [RESERVED]

ARTICLE 8 SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES

Section 8.01. Supplemental Indentures without Consent of Holders of Notes. For the purposes of the Base Indenture and this Fourth Supplemental Indenture, no amendment to cure any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency in this Fourth Supplemental Indenture, the Base Indenture or the Notes made solely to conform this Fourth Supplemental Indenture, the Base Indenture or the Notes to the Description of the Notes contained in the Company's offering memorandum dated May 23, 2024, to the extent that such provision in the Description of the Notes was intended to be a verbatim recitation of a provision of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture, the Base Indenture or the Notes, shall be deemed to adversely affect the interests of the Holders of any Notes.

Section 8.02. Supplemental Indentures with Consent of Holders of Notes. Section 9.02 of the Base Indenture shall not apply to the Notes, and, with respect to the Notes, any reference to Section 9.02 in the Base Indenture shall instead be deemed to refer to this Section 8.02.

With the consent of the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes affected by such supplemental indenture (including consents obtained in connection with a tender offer or exchange for the Notes), by Act of said Holders delivered to the Company, the Guarantors and the Trustee may enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental hereto for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing in any manner or eliminating any of the provisions of the Indenture or of modifying in any manner the rights of the Holders of such Notes under the Indenture; *provided*, *however*, no such supplemental indenture shall, without the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Note affected thereby:

- (a) change the Stated Maturity of the principal of, or any installment of principal of or interest on, any Note;
- (b) reduce the principal amount of any Note which would be due and payable upon a declaration of acceleration of the Maturity thereof pursuant to Section 5.02 of the

Base Indenture, or reduce the rate of or extend the time of payment of interest on any Note;

- (c) reduce the Repurchase Price in connection with a Change of Control Repurchase Event;
- (d) reduce any premium payable upon the redemption of or change the date on which any Note may or must be redeemed;
- (e) change the coin or currency in which the principal of or premium, if any, or interest on or any Additional Amounts with respect to any Note is payable;
 - (f) change the date on which any Note may or must be redeemed;
- (g) impair the right of any Holder to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment on or after the Stated Maturity thereof (or, in the case of redemption or repayment, on or after the redemption date or a Repurchase Price Payment Date, as applicable);
- (h) reduce the percentage in principal amount of the Outstanding Notes the consent of whose Holders is required for modification or amendment of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture or the Base Indenture or the consent of whose Holders is required for any waiver (of compliance with certain provisions of the Base Indenture or this Fourth Supplemental Indenture or certain defaults thereunder and hereunder and their consequences) provided for in the Base Indenture and this Fourth Supplemental Indenture;
- (i) modify any of the provisions of this Section 8.02 or Section 5.12 or Section 10.05 of the Base Indenture, except to increase any such percentage or to provide that certain other provisions of the Indenture cannot be modified or waived without the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Note affected thereby; *provided*, *however*, that this clause shall not be deemed to require the consent of any Holder with respect to changes in the references to "the Trustee" and concomitant changes in this Section 8.02 and Section 10.05 of the Base Indenture, or the deletion of this proviso, in accordance with the requirements of Sections 6.11 and 9.01(g) of the Base Indenture;
 - (j) subordinate the Notes or any Guarantee of a Guarantor in respect thereof to any other obligation of the Company or such Guarantor;
 - (k) modify the terms of any Guarantee in a manner adverse to the Holders of the Notes; or
 - (1) modify clauses (a) through (k) above.

It shall not be necessary for any Act of Holders under this Section 8.02 to approve the particular form of any proposed supplemental indenture, but it shall be sufficient if such Act shall approve the substance thereof.

A supplemental indenture which changes or eliminates any covenant or other provision of the Indenture which has expressly been included solely for the benefit of one or more particular series of Securities other than the Notes, or which modifies the rights of the Holders of Securities of such series with respect to such covenant or other provision, shall be deemed not to affect the rights under this Indenture of the Holders of the Notes.

In addition, the Holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes may, on behalf of the Holders of all Notes, and subject to and in accordance with the provisions of Section 10.05 of the Base Indenture, waive compliance with the Credit Parties' covenants described under Sections 6.01, 6.02, 6.03 and 6.04 of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture and Article 9 and Section 14.02 of the Base Indenture (other than any covenant, a modification to which under clause (e) of this Section 8.02 would require the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Note affected thereby).

ARTICLE 9 Defeasance

Section 9.01. *Covenant Defeasance.* Section 13.03 of the Base Indenture shall not apply to the Notes, and, with respect to the Notes, any reference to Section 13.03 in the Base Indenture shall instead be deemed to refer to this Section 9.01.

Upon the Company's exercise of its option, if any, to have Section 13.03 of the Base Indenture applied to the Notes, or if Section 13.03 of the Base Indenture shall otherwise apply to the Notes, (1) the Company and the Guarantors shall be released from their respective obligations and any covenants provided pursuant to Article 6 of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture and Section 3.01(b)(18), Section 8.01, Section 9.01(a) or Section 9.01(l) and Article 14 of the Base Indenture for the benefit of the Holders of the Notes and (2) the occurrence of any event specified in Section 5.01(d) and Section 5.01(h) of the Base Indenture shall be deemed not to be or result in an Event of Default, in each case with respect to the Notes and the related Guarantees as provided in Section 13.03 of the Base Indenture on and after the date the conditions set forth in Section 13.04 of the Base Indenture are satisfied (hereinafter called "Covenant Defeasance"). For this purpose, such Covenant Defeasance means that, with respect to the Notes and Guarantees thereof, each of the Company and the Guarantors may omit to comply with and shall have no liability in respect of any term, condition or limitation set forth in any such specified Section, whether directly or indirectly by reason of any reference elsewhere herein or in the Base Indenture to any such Section or by reason of any reference in any such Section to any other provision herein or in the Base Indenture or in any other document, but the remainder of the Base Indenture, this Fourth Supplemental Indenture and such Notes and Guarantees thereof shall be unaffected thereby.

ARTICLE 10 Miscellaneous

Section 10.01. *Execution as Supplemental Indenture*. This Fourth Supplemental Indenture is executed and shall be construed as an indenture supplemental to the Base

Indenture and, as provided in the Base Indenture, this Fourth Supplemental Indenture forms a part thereof.

- Section 10.02. Not Responsible for Recitals or Issuance of Notes. The recitals contained herein and in the Notes, except the Trustee's certificates of authentication, shall be taken as the statements of the Company and the Guarantors, as the case may be, and the Trustee assumes no responsibility for their correctness. The Trustee makes no representations as to the validity or sufficiency of this Fourth Supplemental Indenture or of the Notes or the Guarantees. The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use or application by the Company of the Notes or the proceeds thereof.
- Section 10.03. *Separability Clause*. In case any provision in this Fourth Supplemental Indenture or in the Notes shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.
- Section 10.04. *Successors and Assigns*. All covenants and agreements in this Fourth Supplemental Indenture by the Company and the Guarantors shall bind their respective successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not. All agreements of the Trustee in this Fourth Supplemental Indenture shall bind its successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not.
- Section 10.05. Execution and Counterparts. This Fourth Supplemental Indenture may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. The words "execution," "signed," "signature," "delivery," and words of like import in or relating to this Fourth Supplemental Indenture or any document to be signed in connection with this Fourth Supplemental Indenture shall be deemed to include electronic signatures, deliveries or the keeping of records in electronic form, each of which shall be of the same legal effect, validity or enforceability as a manually executed signature, physical delivery thereof or the use of a paper-based recordkeeping system, as the case may be, and the parties hereto consent to conduct the transactions contemplated hereunder by electronic means.
- Section 10.06. *Governing Law.* This Fourth Supplemental Indenture and the Notes shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the law of the State of New York.
- Section 10.07. FATCA. In order to comply with applicable tax laws, rules and regulations (inclusive of directives, guidelines and interpretations promulgated by competent authorities) in effect from time to time ("Applicable Law"), the Trustee shall be entitled to make any withholding or deduction from payments under the Indenture to the extent necessary to comply with Applicable Law (and shall timely pay the amounts so withheld or deducted to the applicable governmental authority) for which The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. shall not have any liability, except in cases of gross negligence or willful misconduct. Each of the Company and the Trustee agrees to reasonably cooperate and, at the reasonable request of the other, to provide the other with

such information as each may have in its possession that is necessary to enable the determination of whether any payments hereunder are subject to FATO	ľΑ
Withholding Tax.	

[Signature page to follow.]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Fourth Supplemental Indenture to be duly executed all as of the day and year first above written.

KKR GROUP FINANCE CO. XI LLC, as Issuer,

By: /s/ James Rudy

Name: James Rudy Title: Treasurer

KKR & CO. INC., as Guarantor,

By: /s/ James Rudy

Name: James Rudy Title: Authorized Signatory

KKR GROUP PARTNERSHIP L.P.,

as Guarantor,

By: KKR Group Holdings Corp., as its general partner

By: /s/ James Rudy

Name: James Rudy Title: Authorized Signatory

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee

By: /s/ April Bradley
Name: April Bradley
Title: Vice President

KKR

KKR prices ¥91,400,000,000 of senior notes

New York — May 22, 2024 — KKR & Co. Inc. ("KKR") (NYSE: KKR) today announced that it has priced an offering of \(\frac{\pmath{\text{44}}}{400,000,000,000} \) aggregate principal amount of its 1.559% Senior Notes due 2029 (the "2029 notes"), \(\frac{\pmath{\text{4}}}{1,000,000,000} \) aggregate principal amount of its 1.762% Senior Notes due 2031 (the "2031 notes"), \(\frac{\pmath{\text{26}}}{200,000,000} \), \(\frac{\text{200}}{200,000,000} \) aggregate principal amount of its 2.083% Senior Notes due 2034 (the "2034 notes"), \(\frac{\pmath{\text{410}}}{10,000,000,000} \), \(\frac{\text{200}}{200,000,000} \), \(\frac{\text{2000}}{200,000,000} \), \(\frac{\text{2000}}{200,000} \), \(\frac{\text{2000}}{200,000} \), \(\frac{\text{2000}}{200,000} \), \(\frac{\text{2000}}{200,000} \

KKR intends to use the net proceeds from the sale of the notes for general corporate purposes.

The notes will be offered and sold to qualified institutional buyers in the United States pursuant to Rule 144A and outside the United States pursuant to Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act").

The notes have not been registered under the Securities Act or any state securities laws and may not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state laws.

This press release shall not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to purchase the notes or any other securities, and shall not constitute an offer, solicitation or sale in any state or jurisdiction in which such an offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful. This press release is being issued pursuant to and in accordance with Rule 135c under the Securities Act.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This press release contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, pertaining to KKR. Forward-looking statements relate to expectations, estimates, beliefs, projections, future plans and strategies, anticipated events or trends and similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical facts. These forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as "outlook," "believe," "think," "expect," "potential," "continue," "may," "should," "seek," "approximately," "predict," "intend," "will," "plan," "estimate," "anticipate," the negative version of these words, other comparable words or other

statements that do not relate strictly to historical or factual matters. These forward-looking statements are based on KKR's beliefs, assumptions and expectations, but these beliefs, assumptions and expectations can change as a result of many possible events or factors, not all of which are known to KKR or within its control. Due to various risks and uncertainties, actual events or results may differ materially from those reflected or contemplated in such forward-looking statements. We believe these factors include those in the sections entitled "Risk Factors" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2024, as such factors may be updated from time to time in our periodic filings with the SEC, which are accessible on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. These factors should be read in conjunction with the other cautionary statements that are included in our periodic filings. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this press release. KKR does not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date of this press release except as required by law.

CONTACT INFORMATION

Investor Relations:

Craig Larson
Tel: +1 (877) 610-4910 (U.S.) / +1 (212) 230-9410 investor-relations@kkr.com

Media Contact:

Wei Jun Ong Tel: +1 (212) 750-8300 media@kkr.com